
 
 

February 08, 2021                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               7:00 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 8, 2021 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
*SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DUE TO COVID-19* 

 

Given the current Shelter-in-Place Order covering the State of California and the Social Distance 
Guidelines issued by Federal, State, and Local Authorities, the City is implementing the following 
changes to participate in Council meetings until notified otherwise. The Council chambers will be 
open to the public but we will be implementing social distancing policies and will limit the number of 
people who may be in the Council chambers. Face masks are required to attend. We are 
encouraging residents to participate virtually following the directions below.  If you are sick, please 
do not attend the meeting. Any member of the City Council may participate from a remote location 
by teleconference. 

 

 The meeting will be webcast and accessed at: https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-
council/city-council-agendas/ 

 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/ at least two (2) hours 
before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


February 08, 2021                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               7:00 PM 

 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 
made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 
Verbal Comments 
 

 If you wish to speak to the Council on an item by telephone, you should contact the City 
Clerk at (559) 324-2060 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

 
 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 

instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting.  Staff recommends participants 
log into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 You will be able to speak to the Council for up to three (3) minutes.  
 
Webex Participation 
 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 
communicating with the host of the virtual meeting.  To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment.  The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the City Council.  Due 
to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written 
and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur.  Participants desiring to make a verbal 
comment via chat will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with audio 
transmission capabilities.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Whalen 
 
ROLL CALL 

 
Public Comments - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City Council 
on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 

2



February 08, 2021                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               7:00 PM 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action listed. 
Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to waive the 
reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of ordinances, only 
those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered Consent items. 
 

1. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the February 1, 2021 Council Meeting. 
2. Administration - Receive and File – Economic Development Corporation Serving 

Fresno County Quarterly Report, October – December 2020. 
3. Administration - Approval – 2021 Street Closure Requests; and Approval - Res. 21-

____, Declaring Certain Events as Old Town Special Events and Setting Precise 
Boundaries for Those Old Town Special Events. 

4. Planning and Development Services - Approval – Res. 21-___, Submittal of a 
Rubberized Pavement Grant for the maintenance of various City streets; and 
Authorizing the City Engineer to execute all related grant documents. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS- Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 
 

5. Consider Approval - Res. 21-___, A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Clovis and California 
Health Sciences University (CHSU) addressing the buildout of the CHSU Campus. 
CHSU, applicant. 
 
Staff: Renee Mathis, Planning and Development Services Director / Dave Merchen, 
City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

 
WORKSHOP - For the Clovis City Council to conduct a workshop to discuss the impact on ongoing 
City operations during the COVID-19 State of Emergency as declared by the Federal Government, 
State of California, County of Fresno, and City of Clovis; and to explore actions the City may take in 
response to the crisis. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
February 16, 2021 (Tue.) 
March 1, 2021 (Mon.) 
March 8, 2021 (Mon.) 
March 15, 2021 (Mon.) 

3



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
February 1, 2021       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Bessinger 
Flag Salute led by Clovis Exchange Club President Rick Snow 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, Whalen 

Mayor Bessinger 
Absent: None 

 

It was the consensus of City Council to add an item to the agenda for a presentation and 
proclamation recognizing the history and accomplishments of the Clovis Exchange Club. 
Councilmember Ashbeck presented a proclamation to the member of the Clovis Exchange Club 
for all of their accomplishments over the years.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - 6:14 P.M. 
 
Paul Pearce, commented on concerns he has with the traffic at the shopping center at the 
southwest corner of Fowler and Herndon Avenues, due to the new Dutch Bros. coffee shop and 
inability to access the Employees Educational Credit Union. 
 
Mayor Bessinger commented on the events that took place last week with campaign signs in the 
city.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:23 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Whalen, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar, except item 5, be approved, including the waiver of the reading of the 
ordinance.   
 
1. Administration - Approved - Minutes from the January 19, 2021 Council Meeting. 
2. Administration - Adopted - Ord. 21-01, R2020-004, A request to amend the P-C-C Zone 

District to establish the Loma Vista Marketplace P-C-C Zone District Standards for 
approximately 23 acres of property located at the southwest corner of Shaw and Leonard 
Avenues. Loma Vista Marketplace, LP, applicant; Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, 
representative. (Vote: 5-0) 

3. Administration – Approved – Res. 21-16, Approving procedures to resolve a tie vote in a City 
of Clovis general municipal election. 

4. General Services – Approved – Res. 21-17, Approving the Reallocation of Proposition 1B 
Transit Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) Bond 
Program Funds.  

6. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Res. 21-18, Amending the Official List of 
Designated Special Speed Zones. 

7. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Res. 21-19, Annexation of Miscellaneous 
Properties to the Landscape Maintenance District No. 1. 

4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

8. Public Utilities – Approved – Res. 21-20, Authorizing the submission of an application to the 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) for City Payment Program 
Funds. 

 
6:24 – CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM (5) - GENERAL SERVICES - APPROVED – RES. 21-21, 
AMENDING THE FY2020-2021 TRANSIT BUDGET TO ADD $156,230.00 IN CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURES; AND APPROVE THE RECEIPT OF GRANT FUND REVENUE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $156,230.00; AND WAIVE THE CITY’S USUAL PURCHASING PROCEDURES 
AND AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF SECURITY CAMERAS FROM SURVEILLANCE 
SYSTEMS INCORPORATED UTILIZING PRICING FROM A COMPETITIVE BID AWARD 
THROUGH THE GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT/FEDERAL ACQUISITION SERVICES.  
 
Councilmember Flores indicated he would abstain from consideration on this item due to a 
potential conflict of interest due to property ownership within 1,000 feet of the Landmark Square 
project. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion 
by the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Whalen, for 
the Council to approve a resolution amending the FY2020-2021 transit budget to add $156,230 
in capital expenditures; and approve the receipt of grant fund revenue in the amount of $156,230; 
and waive the city’s usual purchasing procedures and authorize the purchase of security cameras 
from surveillance systems incorporated utilizing pricing from a competitive bid award through the 
general services department/federal acquisition services. Motion carried 4-0-0-1 with 
Councilmember Flores abstaining.  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

6:25 ITEM 9 - APPROVED – RES. 21-22, ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FY 
2019-2020 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ANNUAL ACTION PLAN; AND 
AMENDING THE FY 2020-2021 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ANNUAL 
ACTION PLAN. 
 

Community and Economic Development Director Andy Haussler presented a report on a request 
for Council to approve a resolution amending the FY 2019-2020 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Annual Action Plan to reinstate the ADA Improvements activity in the amount of 
$60,000; and amend the FY 2020-2021 CDBG Annual Action Plan to reinstate the Dennis/Beverly 
Alley Reconstruction activity in the amount of $140,000. Demand for the Emergency Housing 
Payments Program was greater than funding previously made available.  Council previously 
approved cancelling the ADA Improvements and the Dennis/Beverly Alley Reconstruction 
activities in order to provide more funding for the Emergency Housing Payment Program.  Staff 
has identified availability of CDBG funds remaining from previous allocations to reinstate these 
activities. To further fund the Emergency Housing Payment Program, only CDBG funding from 
either the 2019-2020 or 2020-2021 Annual Action Plans could be utilized.  This was due to a 
waiver provided through the federal CARES Act that the cap on CDBG Public Service activities 
was lifted. As such, the amendments were made to cancel CDBG projects from those funding 
years and redirect them to the Emergency Housing Payment Program.  The ADA Improvements 
and the Dennis/Beverly Alley Reconstruction activities could then be reinstated using remaining 
pre-2019 CDBG funds. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires 
that grantees follow their adopted Citizen Participation Plan when a substantial change is 
proposed to the allocation priorities or a substantial change in the method of distribution of funds 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

for activities funded in the City’s Annual Action Plan.  This includes notification to the public of the 
proposed amendment with a period of review and comment.  On January 1, 2021, the proposed 
amendment notice was published for public review and comment in The Business Journal for the 
required 30-day period.   

 
There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion by the 
Council. Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the Council 
to approve a resolution amending the FY 2019-2020 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Annual Action Plan to reinstate the ADA Improvements activity in the amount of $60,000; 
and amend the FY 2020-2021 CDBG Annual Action Plan to reinstate the Dennis/Beverly Alley 
Reconstruction activity in the amount of $140,000. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
6:30 – ITEM 10 - APPROVED - NAMING THE NEW TRANSIT FACILITY THE WILLIAM “HARRY” 
ARMSTRONG TRANSIT CENTER; AND NAMING THE NEW SENIOR CENTER THE CLOVIS 
SENIOR ACTIVITY CENTER – A SMITTCAMP FAMILY LEGACY. 

 
General Services Director Shonna Halterman presented a report on a request to approve the 
approve the naming of the new transit center as The William H. “Harry” Armstrong Transit Center, 
and to approve the naming of the new senior center as The Clovis Senior Activity Center – A 
Smittcamp Family Legacy. Staff is requesting the formal approval of naming the new transit facility 
as The William “Harry” Armstrong Transit Center, and naming the new senior center as the Clovis 
Senior Activity Center – A Smittcamp Family Legacy, as befitting the notable contributions of their 
namesakes to the Clovis community.  Tom Armstrong, son of William H. “Harry” Armstrong, 
commented on and spoke in support of the naming request.  Councilmember Ashbeck read into 
the record a letter from Diane Armstrong, spouse of William H. “Harry” Armstrong.  Discussion by 
the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the 
council to approve a request to approve the naming of the new transit center as The William H. 
“Harry” Armstrong Transit Center, and to approve the naming of the new senior center as The 
Clovis Senior Activity Center – A Smittcamp Family Legacy. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

6:55 ITEM 11 - RECEIVED AND FILED – 2020 CLOVIS TRAIL COUNT REPORT 
 

Colleen Vidinoff, Engineer II, presented a report on the 2020 Clovis Trail Count Report. The City 
of Clovis Trail Count is performed annually to document the volume of trail usage and to 
extrapolate the actual usage to determine annual estimated projection. The trails and paseos are 
an important part of the Clovis Way of Life and were obviously invaluable during this past year of 
difficulty in our community. The Clovis Trails provided outdoor space where residents could be 
physically active at a safe social distance during the COVID-19 pandemic, keeping the mind and 
body healthy. There is data to confidently indicate that the trails of Clovis were visited by over 3 
million trail users in 2020. Usage will continue to increase with improved connectivity, amenities, 
and destinations. 

 
There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion by the 
Council.  It was the consensus of City Council to receive and file the 2020 Clovis Trail Count 
Report. 

 

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 
COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
7:24 ITEM 12 - APPROVED – A REQUEST FOR A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR AB 262 TO 
AMEND THE PENAL CODE TO IMPROVE THE RECORD CLEARING PROCESS FOR VICTIMS 
OF HUMAN TRAFFICKING. 

 
City Manager Luke Serpa presented a report on a request from Assemblymember Patterson’s 
office to approve a letter of support for AB 262 to amend the Penal Code to improve the record 
clearing process for victims of human trafficking. Luke Serpa summarized the bill and how it could 
assist victims of human trafficking. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the 
public portion.  Discussion by the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by 
Councilmember Flores, for the Council to approve a request from Assemblymember Patterson’s 
office to approve a letter of support for AB 262. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
7:30 ITEM 13 - APPROVED – RES. 21-23, ADOPTING EMERGENCY ORDER 2021-01, 
SUSPENDING CERTAIN CITY TRANSIT SERVICE RIDER ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR 
COVID-19 VACCINATION APPOINTMENT TRANSPORTATION  

 
City Manager Luke Serpa presented a report on a request for the Council to adopt Emergency 
Services Order 2021-01, suspending certain City transit service rider eligibility requirements for 
COVID-19 vaccination appointment transportation. Staff is bringing forth for Council to adopt by 
resolution Emergency Order 2021–01, related to transportation to/from COVID-19 vaccination 
sites for Clovis seniors age 65+.  There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the 
public portion. Discussion by the Council. Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by 
Councilmember Flores, for the Council to approve Emergency Services Order 2021-01, 
suspending certain City transit service rider eligibility requirements for COVID-19 vaccination 
appointment transportation for Clovis seniors age 65+.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
WORKSHOP 
 
City Manager Luke Serpa provided City Council an update on the numbers in Clovis and Fresno 
County due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
7:50 - CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 
City Manager Luke Serpa provided an update to City Council on the schedule for the five year 
forecast and summary of initial numbers. 
 
8:00 - COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Councilmember Whalen showed a picture of Machinehead Brewing Company and commented 
on the creation of what is being termed “Ale Trail” due to the number of breweries along the city’s 
trail system.  
 
Councilmember Ashbeck commented on the use of Clovis Emergency Response Team (CERT) 
volunteers during the pandemic.  
 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Councilmember Mouanoutoua commented on and reported out on a recent League of California 
Cities Housing and Community Development meeting he attended.  
 
Councilmember Flores commented and reported out on North Kings Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency meeting and questioned staff about the County of Fresno dashboard being used to report 
out on the pandemic.  
 
Mayor Bessinger reported out on a San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Governing 
Board meeting he attended; the Presidential Order, which was signed Wednesday, Jan. 20, 
requires “on-duty or on-site federal employees, on-site federal contractors, and other individuals 
in federal buildings and on federal lands should all wear masks, maintain physical distance, and 
adhere to other public health measures, as provided in CDC guidelines; he also commented on 
the recent passing of John Rivera. 
 
Mayor Bessinger adjourned the meeting of the Council to February 8, 2021  
 

Meeting adjourned:   8:12 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration  

DATE: February 8, 2021 

SUBJECT: Administration - Receive and File – Economic Development 
Corporation Serving Fresno County Quarterly Report, October – 
December 2020. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. EDC Second Quarter Report, October – December 2020  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the City of Clovis receive and file the Quarterly Report October – December 2020 
(second quarter 2020-2021 contract), from the Economic Development Corporation Serving 
Fresno County. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County (EDC) has submitted their 
second quarter report of activities for the City Council to receive and file, as required per the 
2020-2021 Agreement with the City. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the summer of 2020, the City of Clovis and the EDC entered into a contract for the 2020-
2021 fiscal year to provide regional marketing and business services to Clovis businesses.  
The contract provides for $40,000 in baseline funding and provides $10,000 for a medical 
attraction study to be completed.  This allows Clovis to be part of a regional effort in attracting 
commercial and industrial businesses to Clovis. Attached is a report detailing the progress 
of their activities to provide information to industrial/commercial representatives not currently 
located in Clovis for recruiting purposes, and continue to assist existing Clovis businesses 
with informational and/or technical assistance to access statewide business support 
programs.    
 
 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
Highlights of the EDC quarterly report include: 

  

 Thirteen qualified business attraction leads were achieved during the quarter. 

 For business retention, 18 businesses were contacted and 108 referrals were made 
to assist those businesses. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City will forward the second quarter installment payment to EDC.  The funds were 
budgeted in the 2020-2021 fiscal year budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The attached report meets the requirement established in the 2020-2021 Agreement 
between the EDC and the City of Clovis. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will file the report. 
 
Prepared by: Andy Haussler, Community and Economic Development Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



City of Clovis 

Quarterly Activity Report 

Quarter 2 

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 

October 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020 

Lee Ann Eager President/CEO 

Sherry Neil Chief Operating Officer 

Paul Thorn Controller 

Andrea Reyes VP of Business Development 

Will Oliver VP of Business Services 

Jessica Abundis Economic Development Specialist 

Jackie Cuevas Economic Support Specialist/Office Manager 

Charlene Holguin Economic Development Specialist 

Raymond Jin Data Administrator - Analyst 

Mandip Johal Business Expansion Retention Coordinator 

Marcella Lara Business Retention Specialist 

Robin Montgomery Business Attraction Specialist 

Merritt Pacini Executive Assistant to the CEO 

Chris Palacios Business Retention Specialist 

Julian Ramos Economic Development Coordinator 

Curtis Williamson Business Development Specialist 

Chris Zeitz Research Analyst 

Attachment 1
11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Page | 1 Quarterly Activity Report 

City of Clovis 
Quarterly Activity Report 

This report summarizes the agreement requirements between the City of Clovis and the Fresno 
County Economic Development Corporation (EDC). 

Division Mission

To market Fresno County as the premier location for business prosperity. 

Fresno County EDC Services

The Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County is a nonprofit organization 

established to market Fresno County as the premier location for business prosperity. We 

facilitate site selection for new businesses within Fresno County, and assist in the 

retention and expansion of businesses through our alliance with collaborative partners 

and resources.  

The EDC agrees to the following services: 

1. Provide information to the industrial and office representatives not located in

the City of Clovis for recruiting new businesses and industries;

2. Assist in the development of marketing materials to attract new investments,

commercial and industrial brokers, developers, and site selectors. Assist in

utilizing online marketing to advance economic and community development

efforts;

3. Assist existing businesses and industries that contact the EDC with

information and technical assistance through the BEAR Action Network;

4. Work to foster a closer working relationship with local business associations

to enhance the EDC services provided to Clovis area employers;

5. Continue acting in a leadership role in promotion of high-speed rail and

promote the Clovis area for related development;

6. Inform Clovis of legislation important to the economic and community

development of the region and act on their behalf;

7. Assist in identifying economic development projects on the City’s behalf for

the inclusion in the County of Fresno’s Comprehensive Economic

Development Strategy (CEDS) for possible grant funding; and

8. Provide administrative staffing at all Executive Committee, Board, and related

events.

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Page | 2 Quarterly Activity Report 

Q2 Snapshot 

The EDC team conducts outreach marketing business expansion and retention services by: 

• Providing an operational analysis to evaluate the health of the business. This tool offers

us a thorough understanding of the appropriate referrals or resources needed for

business growth or retention;

• Connecting businesses to labor subsidy programs;

• Promoting Fresno Energy Watch services;

• Providing education on federal/state/local tax Incentives; and

• Providing referrals and information on financing assistance.

Stemming from direct outreach, workshops, one-on-one meetings, and marketing efforts, the areas 
of interest and number of referrals generated are reflected below: 

Q2 2020-2021 

Businesses Contacted 66 
Business Referrals 199 

Type Goal Q2 FY20-21 Completion 

Virtual Retention and Recovery 
Resource Event 

2 0 0 0% 

Economic Profile 1 1 1 100% 

Incentive Brochure 1 1 1 100% 

New Business Leads 40 13 23 58% 

Comparative Healthcare 
Analysis 

1 0 0 50% 

Targeted Healthcare 
Engagements 

20 0 0 0% 

Top 50 Business List 1 0 0 0% 

Clients and Businesses Contacted

A Mind Above, A Professional 
Psychology Corporation 
A1 Lock & Key 
AK Beauty Bar 
Accounting America 
All Valley Automotive, Inc 
Ambitious Concepts dba Best 
Party Rentals 
Baker Dillon Group 
Ben Brown Painting 
Big Bear Apparel 
Billa Transport 
Biram Transport 

Blue Shell Gaming and 
Collectibles 
Bollywood Hollywood 
Threading 
Brahma Carriers Inc 
Brix and Barrel 
Burnett's Auto Repair 
Bustos Family Child Care 
CA Shippers Association 
CALBEC Group 
Casual Cuts 
Champions for Tomorrow 
China Town Restaurant 

Chuck's BBQ Catering Inc 
Claire Takahashi Photography 
Clovis Barber Shop 
Clovis Chimney 
Clovis Chiropractor 
Clovis Country Junction 
Clovis Donuts 
Clovis Fair Deal Liqour 
Clovis Floral & Cafe 
Clovis Locksmith 
Clovis Round Up. 
Cost Cutters Family Hair Salon 
D. W. Ewing Movers

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 3 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

Floyd Johnston Construction 
Generation Commercial Inc 
Generation Homes, Inc. 
Gilbert K. Moran, M.D. 
F.A.C.O.G. INC. 
Graham Lelliott Kenpo - Central 
Valley Martial Arts 
Green Planet Cleaning Pros 
High Performance Academy, 
LLC 
Hookah & Cigarettes 
IDLS Sierra Avenue, LLC dba 
Magnolia Crossing, LLC 
J I.T Outsource 
JP EXPRESS CARRIER INC 

Jason Cuaderno Insurance 
Agent 
Katherine B Alves Cpa 
Kirby Insurance Services 
Lin Dynasty Chinese Massage 
MRM Family Counseling 
Services Inc. dba Livewell 
Behavioral Health Counseling 
Services 
Maxwell House Antiques 
Mi-Rancho Tortilla 
Niacc-Avitech Technologies, 
Inc. 
Outdoor Environment - 
Underground Boring Systems, 
Inc. 

Planet Solar Inc 
Rushour 
Sequoia Home Health 
Snowflake Designs 
Spectech Speciality Contracting 
Inc 
Steven's Bicycles 
The Garage Do-It-Yourself Auto 
Repair, LLC. 
The Meat Market - Clovis 
The Selfie Studio 
US Vintage Leather 
Willow Creek Healthcare Center

  

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 4 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

City of Clovis Economic Snapshot 

Quarter 2, FY 20-21 
Industrial, Office, and Retail Vacancy 
 
This quarter in the City of Clovis, the industrial vacancy rate 
decreased from 0.5% to 0.3%, the office vacancy rate increased 
from 6.8% to 7.7%, and the retail vacancy rate decreased from 
7.3% to 6.9%.  

 
  
 

 
 

Source: CoStar.com 

December 2020 Unemployment Rates 
The unemployment rate in Clovis was 5.6% in December 2020, 

down from a revised 9.3% in September 2020. This compares 

with an unadjusted unemployment rate of 8.2% for California 

and 6.7% for the nation during the same period.  

 

Source: State of California Employment Development Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q2 FY20-21 Industrial Office Retail 

Fresno County 3.3% 7.5% 5.6% 

City of Clovis 0.3% 7.7% 6.9% 

Area Labor Force Unemployment Rate 

Fresno County                                                440,000 8.6% 

City of Clovis 53,700 5.6% 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 5 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

 

Business Expansion and Attraction Leads 

The EDC generated 14 new business attraction and expansion leads and responded to 8 requests for 
information in the second quarter. EDC staff also remains involved with additional prospective leads that 
may match Clovis’ land and building inventory.  See information below: 

 

Month 
Client 

Number 
Source Industry Jobs 

Site 
Requirements 

Regions 

October 

CCVEDC 2057 
CCVEDC 

Lead 
Rolling Mill and Other Metalworking 

Machinery Manufacturing 
25 2,000 sq. ft. Fresno 

CCVEDC 2055 
CCVEDC 

Lead 
Steel Product Manufacturing from 

Purchased Steel 
TBD 10,000 sq. ft. Fresno 

CCVEDC 2054 
CCVEDC 

Lead 

Research and Development in 
Biotechnology (except 
Nanobiotechnology) 

3 2,000 sq. ft. Fresno, Clovis 

201013R1 Direct Lead Restaurants and Other Eating Places TBD TBD Fresno 

201029R1 Direct Lead Restaurants and Other Eating Places TBD 
3,000 sq. ft. | 

1.0 acres 
Sanger 

201030A1 Direct Lead Materials Recovery Facilities TBD TBD TBD 

November 

201103A1 Direct Lead Emergency shelters, temporary TBD 10.0 acres TBD 

201110A1 Direct Lead Amusement and Theme Parks TBD 300.0 acres Clovis, Sanger 

CCVEDC 2058 
Project 

Pathway 

CCVEDC 
Lead 

Plastics Product Manufacturing 20 
30,000 sq. ft. | 

2.5 acres 
TBD 

Project Kamino 
GO-Biz 
Lead 

Green hydrogen producer 100 50.0 acres TBD 

201118A1 Direct Lead 
All Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 

(except Tobacco Stores) 
4 1,000 sq. ft. 

Fresno, 
Coalinga, 
Mendota, 
Firebaugh 

Project Jain 
Irrigation 

GO-Biz 
Lead 

Agricultural Implement Manufacturing 50 
150,000 sq. ft. | 

8.0 acres 
Clovis, Fresno 

December 
CCVEDC 2060 

CCVEDC 
Lead 

Food Manufacturing 200 
350,000 sq. ft. | 

25.0 acres 
Fresno 

CCVEDC 2065 
CCVEDC 

Lead 
Beverage Manufacturing TBD 100,000 sq. ft. All 

 

Requests for Information 

Month 
Client 

Number 
Source Industry Requirement 

October 

RFI 
201008A 

City/County 
Lead 

Quick Service 
Restaurant 

Reedley City Manager asked for the demographic requirements to 
attract an In-n-Out or Five Guys Burgers. 

RFI 
201008 

Direct Lead 
Sawmills and Wood 

Preservation 

Company interested in starting a lumber operation in eastern rural 
Fresno Co.  Inquiring about the State’s requirements, permits, 

regulations, etc. surrounding starting and operating a lumber mill and 
using the dead tree stock. 

RFI 
201009 

CCVEDC 
Lead 

Multifamily Building 
Construction 

Lead interested in Opportunity Zone info throughout the County. 

RFI 
201012A 

City/County 
Lead 

TBD 
Staff from Economic Development Department of the City of Fresno 

requested a list of all available retail space along Blackstone Ave, Kings 
Canyon Ave, and around the Downtown Fresno area. 

RFI 
201027A1 

Direct Lead 
Bread and Bakery 

Product 
Manufacturing 

Client is developing a line of almond flour cake mixes and is looking for 
information on possible almond wholesalers/farmers and an almond 

processing manufacturer. 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 6 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

November 

RFI 
201105 

Direct Lead 
Offices of Real Estate 
Agents and Brokers 

Local real estate broker asked EDC to provide some data to include in a 
marketing material for a 50 acres industrial park near Jensen and Clovis 

Ave.  EDC provided generic Fresno County information packet. 

RFI 
201130A 

Direct Lead Motor Vehicle Towing 
Shaver Lake-based towing company interested in the process and 
requirements for obtaining a business license, and whether it is 

pertinent or beneficial. 

December 
RFI 

201211 
Direct Lead 

Automotive Body 
Paint and Interior 

Repair and 
Maintenance 

Client is interested in opening an auto body shop in Downtown Fresno 
and had some questions about grants/loans/financing.  Currently in the 

process of determining property requirements. 

  

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 7 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

Partnership with Department of Social Services 

The EDC has been contracted to assist the Fresno County Department of Social Services in 
marketing the New Employment Opportunities (NEO) program, and Ready2Hire, and identify 
prospective employers to hire from the pool of eligible NEO job seekers.   

NEW EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES (NEO) 2020-2021 To be completed by 9/30/2021 

METRIC Actual Contract Goal 
PARTICIPATING BUSINESSES 101 150 

JOB PLACEMENTS  29 200 

JOB POSTINGS 208 500 

JOB FAIRS 1 4 

EMPLOYER TRAINING 0 4 

Customized Workforce Trainings 

Realizing the current labor demands among our local businesses, the EDC, Department of Social Services 

and educational partners have worked with industry stakeholders to develop customized trainings to fulfill 

today’s workforce needs.  Utilizing input from various industry practitioners, each training curriculum is 

developed to create career pathways to meet tomorrow’s industry needs, help businesses grow, and put 

individuals back to work.  Below is a list of customized training programs underway: 

Valley Apprenticeship Connections  
Pre-Apprenticeship Program. The partnership 
between Fresno County EDC, the Department of 
Social Services, and Fresno EOC is continuing to 
provide a 12-week program comprised of 
classroom and construction-based training.   

Central Valley Training Center 
Pre-Apprenticeship Program. The partnership 

between Fresno County EDC, the City of Selma, 

and High-Speed Rail Authority will provide a 16-

week program comprised of classroom and 

construction-based training. 

Truck Driving 

Class A Truck Driving Class. The 10-week training 
is a partnership between Fresno County EDC, the 
Department of Social Services, Fresno City 
College, and Lawson Rock and Oil.        

High-Speed Rail 

Since the program inception in 2013, the EDC has assisted 332 property owners throughout the City 
and County of Fresno. During this quarter our Business Development Specialist assisted 11 
businesses and property owners, making contact 44 times. 

 

 

 

 

Client Status  

Relocated 144 
Reconfiguring 41 
Relocation Pending 9 
Closed 38 
Existing 100 

Total 332 

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 8 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

 

Highlights 

Local Assistance Center (LAC) | All 
EDC staff joined several other agencies in the City of Clovis at the LAC. EDC staffed an information table 
where businesses who were affected by the Creek Fire could receive business resources and incentives. 
Some of the resources and incentives provided were: 

• PG&E Economic Development Rate  

• California Competes Tax Credit 

• New Employment Opportunity Program 

• Pandemic Unemployment Assistance 

• SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan 
EDC staff recorded business information at the LAC and followed through with businesses to provide 
additional information.  
 
2020 IEDC Annual Conference | All 
Eight EDC Staff members participated in the 2020 Virtual IEDC Annual Conference hosted by the 
International Economic Development Council. The conference focused on building resilient and 
sustainable communities that thrive. In view of the accelerating changes impacting Economic 
Development in the years ahead, building local resilience across multiple dimensions will be increasingly 
more important in all areas – from technology to the economy, to social culture. This year’s conference 
aligned five priorities: resiliency in a recession, leadership and talent development, supporting 
entrepreneurship, fostering economic opportunity and diversity, and economic transformation and 
diversity. 
 
Economic Development Certificate Program | All  
Business Attraction Specialist Robin Montgomery attended the CALED Introduction to Economic 
Development Certificate Program at Fresno State and will be receiving her Economic Development 
Certificate for the completed courses.  
 
Discover Global Markets | All 
Fresno County EDC joined CCVEDC’s Executive Director on GoBiz’s Discover Global Markets 
webinar/virtual meeting series. The EDC attended four video calls with local and international 
companies interested in expanding their operations in California. As a result of the video meetings, 
CCVEDC issued four RFPs that were responded to by the EDC. 
 
ATIP Foundation Monthly Meeting | All 
The EDC joined the ATIP Foundation’s monthly meeting to discuss the work with educational and 
workforce development entities in the San Joaquin Valley.  This meeting summarized the first year of 
Advancing the Bioeconomy in California, and also provided updates on workforce training programs, 
submitted grant applications, and outreach efforts.  Participants discussed the path forward for year 2 of 
the initiative, and the future roles of the participating EDCs. 
 
CCVEDC Virtual Broker Mission | All 
CCVEDC member attended six video meetings with brokers from across the U.S. The EDC was able to 
provide County highlights and industry trends to site selectors.  During the final meeting, the broker 

19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 9 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

representing lead CCVEDC 2052, a PPE manufacturer, provided an update on the project.  The EDC 
confirmed a site that met the updated electrical power requirements.  Several of the brokers expressed 
keen interest in the ongoing FDI projects throughout Fresno County.  Part of the discussion revolved 
around the impact of COVID-19, and what participating EDOs were seeing in terms of near-
shoring/reshoring in food production/manufacturing. 
 
ATIP Foundation Year 2 Planning Meeting | All 
EDC met with the directors of the ATIP Foundation to map out what a potential partnership would look 
like for year 2 of the project.  ATIP was introduced to the Executive team to present the year-end report 
and provide a framework for how the EDC can manage leads generated from the data provided by 
ATIP.  EDC has agreed to serve as the Coordinator for management of all prospects considering 
establishing operations or relocating to the region, ATIP will support by vetting and recruiting potential 
prospects nationally. 
 
China International Import Expo | All 
EDC partnered with the Bay Area Council during the China International Import Expo to virtually represent 
Fresno County’s food and ag manufacturing industries.  The CA Pavilion at CIIE was an opportunity to 
showcase these industries and to introduce Chinese importers to our region.  The EDC provided marketing 
materials available to attendees of CIIE. 
 
CCVEDC Board Meeting | All 
EDC staff attended the CCVEDC board meeting where guest speaker, Chad Romine, gave a presentation 
on the new Nautilus floating data barge. The data barge is located at the Port of Stockton and is the first 
of its kind. Data centers are historically very expensive to cool, and the new barge design eliminates much 
of the energy and evaporated water waste by using an enclosed system with water to cool servers with 
no stress on local drinking water and no chemical contamination. Nautilus has FDI from Singapore and 
much interest from large data providers such as Google and expects this barge model to gain popularity 
as it offers green tech that is much more affordable and sustainable for the future. Large data centers 
often lead to more remote work opportunities and upgraded infrastructure for cities where centers are 
located. 
 

Fall 2020 Virtual Job Fair hosted by City of Fresno/Fresno Regional WIB | All 
The EDC attended the Fall 2020 Virtual Job Fair hosted by the City of Fresno and the Fresno Regional WIB. 
Three BEAR team members attended this virtual event. This virtual resource gave job seekers and 
employers another opportunity to connect while following Social Distancing guidelines. The outcome was 
for the EDC to meet employers, to see what employers in the City of Fresno are looking for and what 
current open positions are available. 
 
CALED Presentation: Tools for BRE | All 
EDC Staff participated as a panelist during CALED’s November Webinar Wednesday to discuss tools for 
business retention and expansion with other Economic Development professionals.  EDC Staff highlighted 
the Fresno County demographics, the different data sources the EDC takes advantage of, the Chamber 
Office Hours, partnerships like Fresno4Biz, and all other activities the EDC has engaged in since the 
beginning of the pandemic to support local businesses.  
 
Central Valley Training Center | All 
In partnership with the California High Speed Rail Authority and the City of Selma, the EDC launched the 
Central Valley Training Center (CVTC) on October 5th with a grand opening/ribbon cutting event. The 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

Page | 10 

 

Quarterly Activity Report 

ribbon cutting ceremony garnered a lot of media attention and well over 30 guests including Congressman 
T.J. Cox, Congressman Jim Costa, HSR Board Member Henry Perea and City of Selma Mayor Louis 
Franco.  In preparation for its opening, the EDC researched more than 325 organizations in the six targeted 
counties where outreach and recruitment of potential participants would be conducted.  The EDC team 
launched a social media marketing campaign and website and finalized the 16-week pre-apprenticeship 
training curriculum.  Since September, more than 450 unduplicated applications have been received via 
the website, social media campaign and word of mouth. The first cohort is scheduled to end on January 
29, 2021. 
 
Rural Relief Small Business Grant Business Outreach | All 
A rural business grant became available through Local Initiatives Support Corporation (LISC). EDC staff 
sent an email to the East Side City Managers and Chambers of Commerce with the information about the 
LISC grant. EDC staff received 25 business calls from Reedley, staff assisted by providing details on applying 
for the LISC grant. EDC staff conducted more than 30 business calls throughout the rural communities 
informing businesses to apply for the LISC grant. 
 
2020 California Economic Summit | All 
EDC Staff attended the California Economic Summit hosted by California Forward.  The two-day event was 
attended by hundreds of economic and community leaders and covered a wide range of topics including 
leading for resilient recovery, climate resiliency, equitable economic revitalization, increasing community 
investment, strengthening education pathways, bridging the digital divide and affordable home 
ownership, among other topics.  Staff attended the sessions for leading resilient regions, planning regional 
inclusive economies, investing in small businesses owned by people of color, the regional strategy session 
for the San Joaquin Valley, and building a better California for All.  One prominent takeaway was the 
launch of the CA Dream Index which tracks progress toward a more equitable California where all can 
prosper.  
 
ICSC RECon New York | All 
ICSC RECon New York was held virtually this year for the first time. The event had 17 speaking sessions, 
two afternoons of virtual deal making, and close to 4,000 attendees. EDC Attractions team staff 
participated in the event to gain further knowledge of trends and how COVID-19 has affected the retail 
market. Speaking sessions centered around topics such as: equitable development in cities, how COVID-
19 is reshaping cities and suburbs, tips for dividing vacant big box spaces, and how fulfillment is being 
delivered upon by retailers. Virtual deal making offered the opportunity for staff to meet one on one with 
retailer representatives for possible expansion into the Fresno County market. 
  
CCVEDC Board Meeting | All 
EDC staff attended the CCVEDC board meeting which included discussion of this year’s marketing efforts 
thus far. Requests for properties and information have been trending upward for the Central Valley. Our 
region continues to be a valuable option to companies who may be looking to leave larger metro areas or 
break into the California market. 
 

Other Activities 
November 

Veterans Employment Committee | All 
 

December 
PRO Neighborhoods Community Lending Workshop | All 
SBDC Presentation on the CA Relief Grant | All 

CALED Presentation on the CA Relief Grant | All 
Veterans Employment Committee Meeting | All 

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



ATTACHMENT 1  

FY 20-21 Overview of Work 
Product 

Deliverables FY 2020 – 2021 Target Outcomes   

Economic Development 
Corporation Serving Fresno 
County  
 
Contract: $40,000 
 
Comparative Healthcare  
Analysis: $10,000 
 
Staff: 
President & CEO 
Lee Ann Eager 
 
Sherry Neil 
Chief Operating Officer 
 
Vice President of Business 
Services  
Will Oliver 
  

Retention:  
Targeted businesses will be contacted by a variety of 
methods to educate Clovis businesses on local, 
regional and statewide incentive programs  

• Conduct Analysis to determine top 50 
companies in Clovis that should be focused 
on for retention and expansion 
 

New Business Recruitment:  
Provide information and tours to industrial and 
commercial representatives not currently located in 
Clovis for the purpose of recruiting new businesses 
and industries to the City of Clovis.  Assist the City of 
Clovis in marketing identified industrial parks or 
industrial areas to new clients.  

 

• Coordinate site tours for the purpose of 
business attraction and expansion. 
 

• Create and update marketing materials. 
 

• Coordinate commercial and industrial broker 
events for the City of Clovis. 
 

• Conduct analysis to determine expansion 
industries and companies to target for 
expansion. 
 

• Attend trade shows/missions and market 
Clovis. 

Top 50 targeted business analysis 
for expansion/retention  

Top 50 Analysis updated in Q2 with 
additional updates and 
adjustments ongoing through 
FY20-21. 

Respond to all City of Clovis 
business inquires and connect 
them to appropriate resources 

66 clients and businesses 
contacted and 199 referrals made 
during Q2. 

Complete Comparative Healthcare 
Analysis 

Ongoing. Phase 1 completed. 
Phase 2 to be completed in FY20-
21. 

2 Broker Events 
Planning discussions to continue 
once Shelter-In-Place order is 
lifted. 

 
40 new business leads  

23 total business leads; 13 leads 
generated in Q2. 

5 Trade shows/missions attended 0/5 completed 

 
Economic Profile including 
updated demographic information 
 
Business Park Brochures 
 
Incentive Brochure 

 

• Economic profile updated and 
hosted on our website. 

 
 

• Incentive brochure to be 
updated in FY20-21 Q1 in 
cooperation with city staff.  

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: February 8, 2021 

SUBJECT: Administration - Approval – 2021 Street Closure Requests; and 
Approval - Res. 21-____, Declaring Certain Events as Old Town 
Special Events and Setting Precise Boundaries for Those Old Town 
Special Events. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 21-_____ 
2. Matrix of Old Town Events 
3. Letter to PBIA 
4. Summary of Old Town Special Events Ordinance 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the City Council approve the requests from BOOT, Clovis Chamber of Commerce, 
Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, Fleet Feet Sports, 
Make-A-Wish Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, American Legion, and Clovis Senior 
Center for street closures in the City of Clovis for the calendar year 2021; and approve 
Res. No. 21-___ declaring certain events as Old Town Special Events, and setting precise 
boundaries for those Old Town Special Events. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This street closure request is the standard report that goes to City Council annually.  The 
difference in this year’s report is the fact that due to the pandemic and what types of 
events may be allowed by the State and the County in 2021, staff is really uncertain if, 
and when, certain events will actually take place.  Staff is taking this item to Council with 
the hope that events will happen as planned but with the realization that staff will have to 
be flexible in working with the event promoters and all of the stakeholders (businesses) 
impacted.  
 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Should there be a need to reschedule an event, staff will request alternate dates for 
closure. Requests of this nature may be made with less than 60-days’ notice, as required 
in section 5.20.04 of the Clovis Municipal Code (Old Town Special Events). Since all other 
advanced processing will have been completed, staff is confident that this should not 
cause unnecessary issues. These changes will only be considered for the events listed in 
this report, and no others.  
 
Staff requests street closure simultaneously, and in advance, to allow for proper event 
planning.  A resolution (Attachment “1”) is required by Ordinance 00-02, adopted January 
10, 2000, declaring certain events as Old Town Special Events and the setting of precise 
boundaries.  Requests for street closure are attached. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is a matrix of the events (Attachment “2”), sponsored by BOOT, Clovis Chamber 
of Commerce, Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, 
Fleet Feet Sports, Make-A-Wish Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, American Legion, 
and Clovis Senior Center for closure of streets in Clovis during the calendar year 2021.  
Each activity has a unique street closure request.  The boundaries and time of street 
closure remain the same as 2019 for all returning events. 

 
A letter was sent to Old Town merchants and property owners on January 20, 2021 
(Attachment “3”), soliciting comments/concerns regarding the 2021 street closures.  Staff 
has received no comments or concerns on these events. 
 
The Old Town Special Events Ordinance was adopted by Council on January 10, 2000 
and provides guidelines for the operation of Old Town Special Events.  A summary of the 
Old Town Special Events Ordinance is attached (Attachment “4”).  A resolution 
(Attachment “1”) is required by Ordinance 00-02, adopted January 10, 2000, declaring 
certain events as Old Town Special Events and the setting of precise boundaries. 
 
Additionally, staff requests the ability to implement street closures at Centennial Plaza 
and Clovis Veterans Memorial District (CVMD) with less than 60-day lead time. If 
approved, this method of processing street closure request(s) will require staff review; 
Special Event Committee Review; written notification distribution to all residents, property 
owners, and business operators who may be affected by the street closure/event – giving 
them ten calendar days to respond; traffic control plan; ABC license application (if 
necessary); insurance documents; and appropriate permit applications. Like all other 
street closure requests, staff will continue to work with neighbors and applicant to assure 
a safe and successful event. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City of Clovis is positively impacted by the proposed events.  Local businesses benefit 
from large numbers of people visiting their neighborhood and the City of Clovis benefits 
from the increased tax revenue. 

 

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Some events require additional City services.  Per Council’s decision of November 16, 2009, 
and starting July 1, 2010, the City of Clovis will help offset the costs of certain events.  These 
include, and are limited to, Big Hat Days, Clovis Rodeo Parade, Farmers Market, Freedom 
Fest, Clovis Fest, Antique and Collectible Fair, Freedom Fest, and Children’s Electrical 
Parade. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
In previous years, more than 300,000 people have attended the various events held in 
Clovis annually, many of whom have returned to Clovis to patronize local businesses.  In 
the past, BOOT, Clovis Chamber of Commerce, Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo 
Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, Fleet Feet Sports, Make-A-Wish Foundation, 
Clovis Area Recreation, American Legion, and Clovis Senior Center requested street 
closures to hold events in Old Town on an individual basis, prior to the event.  There have 
been several occasions where the requests were not processed in time to allow for proper 
planning from the City’s perspective.  Therefore, staff is requesting street closure 
simultaneously for all of the special events to ensure adequate time for event planning. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
1. Staff will notify the following of the Council’s decision:  BOOT, Clovis Chamber of 

Commerce, Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, 
Fleet Feet Sports, Make-A-Wish Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, American 
Legion, and Clovis Senior Center. 

 
2. Staff will work with BOOT, Clovis Chamber of Commerce, Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis 

Rodeo Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, Fleet Feet Sports, Make-A-Wish 
Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, American Legion, and Clovis Senior Center to 
ensure that the sponsors provide security and cleanup of the events on an individual 
basis. 

 
Prepared by: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

 

 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



RESOLUTION 21-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS DECLARING  
CERTAIN EVENTS AS OLD TOWN SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, BOOT, Clovis Chamber of Commerce, Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo 

Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, Clovis Veterans Memorial District, Fleet Feet Sports, 
Make-A-Wish Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, and Clovis Senior Center have requested 
public street closures in the City of Clovis for the 2021 calendar year to conduct such special 
events as listed in 2021 City of Clovis Special Events Request for Old Town Street Closures; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the special events sponsored by BOOT, Clovis Chamber of Commerce, 
Clovis Elks Lodge, Clovis Rodeo Association, Old Town Clovis Kiwanis, Clovis Veterans 
Memorial District, Fleet Feet Sports, Make-A-Wish Foundation, Clovis Area Recreation, and 
Clovis Senior Center shall be declared Old Town Special Events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approves and authorizes the closure 

of public streets to be used for the attached listed special events. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby declares that the 
events as described in the 2021 City of Clovis Special Events Request for Old Town Street 
Closures be declared as Old Town Special Events. 
 
 

 *  *  *  *  * 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on the 8th day of February 2021, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   

 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 DATED: February 8, 2021 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 

  Mayor       City Clerk 
 

 

 

Attachment 1 
26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Attachment 2 

2021 CITY OF CLOVIS SPECIAL EVENTS  

REQUEST FOR OLD TOWN STREET CLOSURES 

 

DATE TIME EVENT SPONSOR STREETS 

Every Saturday 6 AM to 12:30 PM Year Round Farmers Mkt BOOT Pollasky (5th to 7th); Bullard (Woodworth to Pollasky) 

March 3 (Wednesday) 8 AM to 5 PM American Legion 

Centennial Open House 

American Legion 4th (Woodworth to Alley east of American Legion) 

March 14 (Sunday) 12 PM to 10 PM Craft Beer Crawl BOOT Pollasky (4th to 5th) 

March 28(Sunday) 2 AM to 8 PM Antique & Collectible Fair BOOT Pollasky (3rd to 7th); 4th (Woodworth to Clovis); 5th (Woodworth to Clovis); Bullard 

(Woodworth to Pollasky). 

April 10 & 11 (Sat.& 

Sun.) 

Sat @ 5 AM to Sun @ 7 PM Big Hat Days Chamber of 

Commerce 

Parking lots #1, #2, & #3. Pollasky (3rd to 9th); Bullard (Dewitt to Pollasky); 4th (Clovis to 

Woodworth); 7th (Clovis to Woodworth); Woodworth (5th to 7th); 8th (Clovis to Woodworth); 

5th (Clovis to Woodworth). 

Set-up will take place on Friday, April 3 on 4th starting at 3PM and on Bullard (Woodworth 

to Pollasky) starting at 8PM. 

April 17 (Sunday) 5 AM to 8 PM Old Town Car Show BOOT Pollasky (3rd to 8th); Parking Lot #1; 4th (Woodworth to Clovis); 5th (Woodworth to Clovis); 

Bullard (Woodworth to Pollasky) 

April 24 (Saturday) 8 AM to 12 PM Rodeo Parade Rodeo Association Clovis (3rd to Barstow); Pollasky (3rd to Barstow); 3rd, 4th, 5th, Bullard, 7th, 8th, 9th, 10th, 

Lincoln, Barstow (Pollasky to Clovis); Jefferson (Clovis to Brookhaven); San Jose (Cole to 

Railroad); Railroad (Jefferson to San Jose). 

May 1 (Saturday) 4 PM to 10 PM Old Town Wine Walk BOOT Pollasky (4th to 5th). 

May 7 thru Oct 29 

(Friday Nights) 

4:30 PM to 11:00 PM Friday Night Farmer's 

Market 

BOOT Pollasky (3rd to 7th); 5th OPEN; Bullard (Pollasky to Woodworth); 4th (Woodworth to 

Pollasky/Clovis alley). 

May 23 (Sunday) 2 AM to 8 PM Glorious Junk Days BOOT Pollasky (3rd to Seventh); 4th (Woodworth to Clovis); 5th (Woodworth to Clovis); Bullard 

(Woodworth to Pollasky). 

* June 12 & 13 (Sat.& Sun.) Big Hat Days (see details above) 

* June 27 (Sunday) Craft Beer Crawl (see details above) 

June 14 (Monday) 10:30 AM to 1:30 PM Flag Day Observation Clovis Elks Lodge Pollasky (5th to 7th); Bullard (Woodworth to Pollasky). 

July 23 (Friday) 3 PM to 11:00 PM Pole Vault Championships BOOT Pollasky (3rd to 7th); 5th OPEN; Bullard (Pollasky to Woodworth); 4th (Woodworth to 

Pollasky/Clovis alley). 

August 14 (Saturday) Sat: 5 AM to 3 PM Hot August Daze Clovis Elks Lodge Woodworth (Bullard to 5th), Parking Lot #3). 

September 25 & 26 

 (Sat.& Sun.) 

Sat @ 5 AM to Sun @ 6 PM Clovis Fest Chamber of 

Commerce 

Parking lots #1, #2, & #3. Pollasky (3rd to 8th); Bullard (Dewitt to Pollasky); 4th (Clovis to 

Woodworth); 7th (Clovis to Woodworth); Woodworth (5th to 7th); 8th (Clovis to Woodworth); 

5th (Clovis to Woodworth). 

Set-up will take place on Friday, October 23 on 4th starting at 3PM and on Bullard 

(Woordorth to Pollasky) starting at 8PM. 

October 2 (Saturday) 6:00 AM to 12 Midnight Make-A-Wish Golf Michelangelo’s Bullard between Woodworth and Alley between Woodworth and Pollasky 

October 10 (Sunday) Noon to Midnight Farm to Table Dinner BOOT Pollasky (4th to 5th);  Parking Lot #1 

October 17 (Sunday) 2 AM to 8 PM Glorious Junk Days and 

Antique & Collectible Fair 

BOOT Pollasky (3rd to Seventh); 4th (Woodworth to Clovis); 5th (Woodworth to Clovis); Bullard 

(Woodworth to Pollasky). 

October 30 (Saturday) 4 PM to 10 PM Old Town Wine Walk BOOT Pollasky (4th to 5th). 

November 6 (Sunday) 6 AM to 11 AM 2 Cities Marathon Fleet Feet Sports Various Old Town Streets 

November 18 (Thursday) 4 PM to 9 PM One Enchanted Evening BOOT Pollasky (3rd to 7th); 5th OPEN; 4th (Clovis to Woodworth); Bullard (Pollasky to 

Woodworth). 

December 4 (Saturday) 5 PM to 8 PM Children's Electric 

Christmas Parade 

Old Town Clovis 

Kiwanis 

Clovis Ave. (3rd to 9th); Pollasky (3rd to 9th); 3rd, 4th 5th 7th Bullard, 8th (Pollasky to Clovis). 

 
27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

City Manager 559.324.2060 • Finance 559.324.2130 • Fire 559.324.2200 • General Services 559.324.2060  
Planning & Development Services 559.324.2340 • Police 559.324.2400 • Public Utilities 559.324.2600  • TTY-711 

www.cityofclovis.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 20, 2021 
 
Subject:  2021 Old Town Street Closures 
 
Dear Old Town Merchant, Resident and/or Property Owner: 
 
Attached is a list of requested street closures for calendar year 2021. As you can imagine, this 
has been a difficult list to compile. With all of the uncertainties associated with outdoor events, 
we are expecting some of these annual activities to be postponed, and possibly canceled. The 
Craft Beer Crawl and Big Hat Days events, scheduled for early spring, will most likely not be 
allowed to take place on their regular dates. Because of this, you will notice that BOOT and 
the Chamber of Commerce have requested alternate dates in June. As the next couple of 
months unfold, there may be more date changes. We will notify you of these changes as early 
and quickly as possible. 
 
Please review this list and forward any concerns in writing to my attention by noon, Sunday, 
January 31, 2021. The Clovis City Council will consider these requests in February. 
 
If you have any questions or need further information, Please feel free to contact me at 324-
2083, or by email at shawnm@cityofclovis.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Shawn A. Miller, Business Development Manager 
City of Clovis 
 

Attachment 3 

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Attachment 4
29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: February 8, 2021 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval – Res. 21-___, 
Submittal of a Rubberized Pavement Grant for the maintenance of 
various City streets; and Authorizing the City Engineer to execute all 
related grant documents. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 21-__ 
2. City of Clovis Cape Seal Project Locations 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
John Holt owns property within 1,000 feet of this project and has not participated in the 
preparation or analysis of this project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution authorizing the submittal of a Rubberized 
Pavement Grant Application for the maintenance of various City streets; and, authorizing the 
City Engineer to execute all related grant documents. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) administers programs 
to divert waste tires from landfill disposal, prevent illegal tire dumping, and promote markets 
for recycled-content tire products. The Rubberized Pavement Grant Program is designed to 
promote markets for recycled-content surfacing products derived from only California 
generated waste tires. 
 

The City is applying for Rubberized Chip Seal funds under the Rubberized Pavement Grant 
Program. These funds are aimed at using rubberized chip seal material for road repair and 
maintenance. Local governments are eligible to apply for these competitive chip seal grant 
funds, and are awarded funds based on a fixed dollar amount per square yard of materials 
used. 
 

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



A total of $4,387,000 is currently available for award under the Rubberized Pavement Grant 
Program for fiscal year 2020/21.  The maximum grant award is $250,000, with an approximate 
term of two years. The grant term for fiscal year 2020/21 terminates on April 1, 2023. Staff is 
requesting $84,871.00 of chip seal grant funds. 
 
It is economically advantageous for the City to apply for the Chip Seal Grant, under 
CalRecycle’s Rubberized Pavement Grant Program for the maintenance of various City 
streets (see Attachment 2 for the specific street locations). With Council’s approval of this 
request, staff will complete the competitive grant application and submit it with the attached 
resolution to CalRecycle by the February 22, 2021, deadline.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The Chip Seal Grant is aimed at users of rubberized chip seal materials. Rubberized asphalt 
concrete (commonly referred to as RAC) is a road paving material made by blending ground-
up recycled tires with asphalt to produce a binder which is then mixed with conventional 
aggregate materials. RAC is a proven product that has many benefits including being cost 
effective, durable, safe, quiet, and an environmentally friendly alternative to traditional road 
paving materials. There are two primary types of binders for RAC - asphalt-rubber and 
terminal blend (preferred binder used by the City). Terminal blends are binder materials that 
use finely ground (less than 30 mesh) crumb rubber modifier and are typically blended at the 
asphalt refinery. Terminal blend has over 20 years of successful use in California.   
 
Chip Seal grant funds have a set per square yard “reimbursed rate” according to county. The 
maximum reimbursement rate in Fresno County is limited to $1.00 per square yard. Additional 
grant requirements specify that projects must use a minimum of 40,000 square yards of chip 
seal material, contain a minimum of 300 pounds of tire derived crumb rubber per ton of 
rubberized binder, and must be from 100% California waste tires. 
 
The Engineering Division solicited recommendations from the City’s Public Utilities 
Department in selecting the proposed Clovis street locations. The locations, which were 
selected using the City’s computerized Pavement Management System, are shown on 
Attachment 2.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed chip seal street maintenance work was included in the approved 2020/21 fiscal 
year Community Investment Program Street budget. Total construction project costs have 
been estimated at $594,096.00. Should the City’s Chip Seal Grant request be approved in the 
amount of $84,871.00, the City will apply these funds toward the total construction costs. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
To complete the grant application, Council must approve a resolution certifying approval of 
the City’s application for 2020/21 Rubberized Pavement Program Funds. Council must also 
authorize a designated representation on behalf of the City of Clovis (the City Engineer) to 
sign the agreement, amendment, and payment requests as necessary to complete the project. 

 
 

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will submit the 2020/21Rubberized Pavement Grant Application along with the approved 
resolution to CalRecycle by the grant submittal deadline of February 22, 2021.  
 
Prepared by: Ryan Burnett, Engineering Program Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



RESOLUTION 21- ___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AUTHORIZING 
SUBMITTAL OF A CALRECYCLE RUBBERIZED PAVEMENT GRANT 

APPLICATION FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF VARIOUS CITY STREETS AS 
ELIGIBLE 

 
WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq. authorize the 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to administer various 
grant programs (grants) in furtherance of the State of California’s (state) efforts to reduce, 
recycle and reuse solid waste generated in the state thereby preserving landfill capacity 
and protecting public health and safety and the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the application, awarding, and management of the grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle grant application procedures require, among other things, 
an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations related to 
the administration of CalRecycle grants.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis City Council 
authorizes the submittal of an application to CalRecycle for a Rubberized Pavement Grant 
for Chip Seal Projects for which the City of Clovis is an eligible entity; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Engineer, or his/her designee is 

hereby authorized and empowered to execute in the name of the City of Clovis all grant 
documents, including but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments and 
requests for payment, necessary to secure grant funds and implement the approved grant 
project; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that these authorizations are effective for five (5) 

years from the date of adoption of this resolution. 
 

*   *  *  *    * 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Clovis held on February 8, 2021 by the following vote, to wit. 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

DATED:      February 8, 2021 

 

_______________________   ______________________ 

      Mayor           City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1 

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



EXHIBIT A

1:5,0001/28/2021

ECITY OF CLOVIS PROJECT LOCATIONS

CIP 21-01 RUBBERIZED CAPE SEAL 2021

VICINITY MAP

CLOVIS CITY LIMITS

S4

S5
S6

C1

S1

S2

S3

C2

C3

ATTACHMENT 2

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



EXHIBIT B

1:5,0001/28/2021

EPROJECT LOCATIONS WITH COMMUNITY CLEAN-UP 

PROGRAM FROM MAY TO JUNE

Dakota

Ashlan

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Shepherd

Perrin

W
ill

o
w

P
e

a
c
h

D
e

W
o

lf

L
o

c
a

n

T
e

m
p

e
ra

n
c
e

A
rm

s
tr

o
n

g

F
o

w
le

r

S
u

n
n

y
s
id

e

M
in

n
e

w
a

w
a

C
lo

v
is

L
e

o
n

a
rd

H
ig

h
la

n
d

CIP 21-01 RUBBERIZED CAPE SEAL 2021

VICINITY MAP

CLOVIS CITY LIMITS

S4

S5
S6

3/17/2021

4/12/2021

4/8/2021

5/12/2021

5/18/2021

C1

S1

S2

S3

C2

C3

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Wednesday

Monday

Tuesday

Friday

Thursday

EXHIBIT C

1:5,0001/28/2021

EPROJECT LOCATIONS WITH WEEKLY 

TRASH COLLECTION SCHEDULE

Dakota

Ashlan

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Shepherd

Perrin

W
ill

o
w

P
e

a
c
h

D
e

W
o

lf

L
o

c
a

n

T
e

m
p

e
ra

n
c
e

A
rm

s
tr

o
n

g

F
o

w
le

r

S
u

n
n

y
s
id

e

M
in

n
e

w
a

w
a

C
lo

v
is

L
e

o
n

a
rd

H
ig

h
la

n
d

CIP 21-01 RUBBERIZED CAPE SEAL 2021

VICINITY MAP

CLOVIS CITY LIMITS

C1

S1

S4

S5
S6

S2

S3

C2

C3

37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



L
o

c
a

n

Gettysburg

Alamos

Pico

Rall

Rialto

Lombard

W
h

i t
m

o
r e

Santa Ana

Sierra Madre

Norwich

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

G
ra

y
b

a
rk

M
a
in

e

Fairmont

San Gabriel

Indianapolis

T
w

in
b

e
rr

y

K
a

w
e

a
h

Duncan

Donner

R
e

d
in

g
to

n

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

G
ra

y
b

a
rk

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

San Gabriel

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

Duncan

Rall
Rall

Norwich

G
ra

y
b

a
rk

K
a

w
e

a
h

Duncan

San Gabriel

Alamos

Rall

Fairmont

San Gabriel

Indianapolis

K
a

w
e

a
h

Sierra Madre

M
a

in
e

San Gabriel

M
a

in
e

Fairmont

Pico

Rialto

K
a

w
e

a
h

R
e

d
in

g
to

n

1 " = 330 '1/28/2021

Area C1
Whitmore, Maine Redington, Kaweah, Rall, Pico,

Santa Ana, San Gabriel, Rialto, Alamos, Twinberry
38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Barstow
R
y
a
n

T
e
m
p
e
ra
n
c
e

Purvis

P
a
rk

Roberts

C
o
v
e
n
t r
y

Wrenwood

Finchwood

Portals

Mitchell

Lincoln

C
a
rs
o
n

Robinwood

Browning

H
a
n
s
o
n

A
p
p
le
g
a
t e

Finchwood

H
a
n
s
o
n

Finchwood

A
p
p
le
g
a
t e

C
a
r s
o
n

T
e
m
p
e
ra
n
c
e

Browning

Lincoln

Wrenwood

P
a
r k

R
y
a
n

P
a
r k

C
a
r s
o
n

Robinwood

C
o
v
e
n
t r
y

H
a
n
s
o
n

C
o
v
e
n
t r
y

Purvis

C
a
rs
o
n

Portals

L
i n
c
o
ln

Robinwood

A
p
p
le
g
a
te

1 " = 250 '1/27/2021

Area C2
Hanson, Park, Applegate, Coventry, Lincoln, 
Wrenwood, Finchwood, Robinwood, Portals

39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Bullard

P
a
rk

Stuart

T
e
m
p
e
ra
n
c
e

H
a
n
s
o
n

Mesa

A
p
p
le
g
a
te

Gibson

C
o
v
e
n
tr
y

Calimyrna

Mesa

1 " = 150 '1/28/2021

Area C3
Hanson, Gibson, Stuart, Park

Coventry, Applegate, Mesa, Calimyrna
40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Shaw

D
e

 W
o

lf

Alamos

Gettysburg

Pico

Rall

Lombard

Santa Ana

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

Sierra Madre

Rialto

G
ra

y
b

a
rk

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

San Gabriel

M
a
in

e

Fairmont

T
w

in
b

e
rr

y

Duncan

R
e
d

in
g

to
n

G
r a

y
b

a
r k

Pico

R
e

d
in

g
to

n

San Gabriel

Rialto

M
a

in
e

Fairmont

Rall
Rall

Sierra Madre

M
a

i n
e

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

San Gabriel

Rall

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

Fairmont

Duncan

1 " = 300 '1/28/2021

Area S1
Maine, Blackwood, Graybark, Whiteash,

Sierra Madre, Fairmont, Duncan, 
Rall, San Gabriel, Rialto, Pico 41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



L
o
c
a
n

Bullard

Barstow

P
a
rk

R
y
a
n

Browning

Morris

Roberts

W
h
it
m
o
re

Celeste
C
o
v
e
n
tr
y

Finchwood

Lincoln

C
a
rs
o
n

M
e
g
a
n

Robinwood

Portals

Wrenwood

G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld

A
p
p
le
g
a
te

M
e
g
a
n

Morris

M
e
g
a
n

Finchwood

Celeste

P
a
rk

G
re
e
n
fie
l d

Robinwood

Wrenwood

P
a
rk

R
y
a
n

Robinwood

R
y
a
n

G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld

Celeste

Lincoln

Browning

Wrenwood

Roberts

C
o
v
e
n
tr
y

W
h
it
m
o
re

Finchwood

Ro
be
rts

C
a
rs
o
n

Robinwood

Roberts

Lincoln

Portals

W
h
it
m
o
re

Morris

C
o
v
e
n
tr
y

Finchwood

Lincoln

Robinwood

W
h
it
m
o
re

C
a
rs
o
n

Celeste

Robinwood

Morris

Robinwood

Wrenwood

1 " = 300 '1/27/2021

Area S2
Carson, Greenfield, Ryan, Greenfield, Megan, 

Morris, Celeste, Roberts, Browning, Wrenwood, 
Finchwood, Robinwood, Portals, Lincoln 42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Bullard

Mesa

Morris

Calimyrna

C
a
rs
o
n

R
y
a
n

H
o
rn
e
t

G
re
e
n
f i
e
ld

C
o
v
e
n
t r
y

C
a
rs
o
n

Mesa

Morris

Mesa

C
a
rs
o
n

1 " = 160 '1/28/2021

Area S3
Carson, Hornet, Greenfield,

Ryan, Mesa, Calimyrna
43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Quincy

T
e
m
p
e
ra
n
c
e

Portland

Omaha

Muncie

C
a
r s
o
n

H
a
n
s
o
n

H
o
rn
e
t

Muncie
C
a
r s
o
n

1 " = 200 '1/27/2021

Area S4
Quincy, Portland, Omaha, Muncie, 

Carson, Hornet, Hanson
44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



L
o

c
a
n

Shepherd

R
y

a
n

Prescott

C
a

rs
o

n

M
e

g
a

n

Serena

Loyola

Everglade

G
r e

e
n

fi
e

ld

H
o

rn
e

t

C
o

v
e

n
t r

y

Powers

P
a

rk

Fire Access

Loyola

Powers

R
y

a
n

H
o

rn
e

t

Loyola

M
e

g
a

n

Everglade

C
a

rs
o

n

Serena

C
o

v
e

n
t r

y

Powers

1 " = 250 '1/27/2021

Area S5
Serena, Everglade, Prescott, 

Powers, Coventry, Hornet, 
Carson, Ryan, Greenfield, Megan 45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



D
e

 W
o

lf

Shepherd

Everglade

Powers

Loyola

K
a

w
e

a
h

Serena

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

Trenton

W
h

i t
m

o
re

Lester

T
w

in
b

e
rr

y

Vermont

Prescott

M
a

in
e

Riordan

T
ra

v
e

rs
e

R
e

d
in

g
to

n

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

G
ra

y
b

a
r k

De Wolf

G
ra

y
b

a
rk

W
h

it
e

a
s

h

Serena

Lester

Powers

T
ra

v
e

rs
e

R
e

d
in

g
to

n

Loyola T
w

in
b

e
rr

y

W
h

it
m

o
r e

W
h

i t
m

o
re

Everglade

Vermont

B
la

c
k

w
o

o
d

1 " = 330 '1/27/2021

Area S6
Serena, Everglade, Prescott, Lester, Twinberry

Loyola, Powers, Whitmore, Redington, Blackwood, 
Traverse, Kaweah, Graybark, Whiteash 46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: February 8, 2021 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 21-___, A Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City 
of Clovis and California Health Sciences University (CHSU) addressing 
the buildout of the CHSU Campus. CHSU, applicant. 
 

Staff: Renee Mathis, Planning and Development Services Director / 
Dave Merchen, City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 21-___ 
2. Memorandum of Understanding 
3. Operational Statement & Economic Impact Analysis 
4. CHSU Conceptual Master Plan (January 31, 2021) 
5. CHSU Campus Phasing Plan (December 28, 2020) 
6. November 9, 2020 Staff Report 
7. November 9, 2020 City Council Minutes Regarding CHSU Housing 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider approval of a resolution (Attachment 1) 
authorizing the City Manager to execute the memorandum of understanding (MOU) 
(Attachment 2) with CHSU. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Granville Homes and the Assemi Group, in their capacity as members of the CHSU Ownership 
Group (“CHSU Representatives”), are working with CHSU to update the vision and master 
plan for the CHSU campus, including campus affiliated housing in the area surrounding the 
University. At its November 9, 2020 meeting, the City Council considered information 
presented by staff and CHSU representatives, and provided direction for moving forward with 
the updated vision. Staff was directed to work with the CHSU representatives to further define 

47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



the need and timing for campus housing, and the identification of appropriate mechanisms to 
tie campus housing to the University. In response to this direction, CHSU prepared a revised 
operational statement (Attachment 3) and worked with staff to develop the MOU which is 
currently under consideration.  

 
BACKGROUND 
In June of 2016, the City approved Administrative Use Permit 2016-09 for the CHSU 
educational campus. As part of the approval, a conceptual CHSU master site plan was 
provided which covered a total of just under 70 acres. This amount included approximately 45 
acres of land identified for educational buildings and supporting uses, together with 
approximately 25 acres designated for student housing. The College of Osteopathic Medicine 
was the first educational building to be developed on the new campus, with instruction 
commencing in the fall of 2020.   
 
In November of 2020, the updated concept for the CHSU campus being discussed by staff 
and CHSU representatives identified approximately 65 acres to be utilized for a combination 
of student and faculty housing. The affiliation between housing units and the University called 
for both rental units and single family ownership units to be available to CHSU community 
members before becoming available to the public. Additionally, five single homes would be 
permanently available exclusively to CHSU community members. At its November 9, 2020 
meeting, the City Council was asked to provide policy direction regarding the amount of 
student and faculty housing that was included in the updated vision for the campus, as well 
as the mechanism which would establish a tie or affiliation between the proposed housing and 
the University (see Attachment 6 – November 9, 2020 Staff Report).  
 
The Council directed staff to work with CHSU to further define the need and timing for campus 
housing, and the identification of appropriate mechanisms to tie campus housing to the 
University (see Attachment 7 - November 9, 2020 meeting minutes). Additional policy direction 
from Council included the following:  

 

 Craft “guard rails” that will create a better tie between housing and CHSU than was 
identified in the initial concept.   

 Ensure student and faculty housing is necessary and essential, noting that market 
rate single family residential is not permitted in the R-T Park. 

 Address whether student and faculty housing should be phased for demand as the 
campus expands.   

 Address the question as to whether student housing should be restricted to CHSU 
students. If not, should there be a percentage restricted to CHSU students? 

 Work with the applicant to develop a master plan to demonstrate the campus housing 
ties to CHSU. 

 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
In response to the direction provided by the City Council, an updated operational statement 
was developed for the University and its campus, and the CHSU representatives worked 

48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



with staff to develop the MOU which is currently under consideration. The discussion below 
highlights key features of the operational statement and MOU. 
 
CHSU Operational Statement and Conceptual Master Plan 
 
The updated operational statement and conceptual master plan establish the vision for a 
mixed-use campus environment where the essential needs of CHSU faculty, students, and 
surrounding and supporting community members are met. In addition to the primary 
educational and administrative buildings and uses, ancillary elements may include affiliated 
administrative space, outdoor areas such as amphitheaters, auditoriums, libraries, clinics, 
day care facilities, libraries, student centers/lounges, dining halls, eateries/restaurants, and 
a neighborhood market. New single and multi-family housing opportunities are identified to 
meet housing needs for CHSU students and faculty as the campus builds out.  
 
Acreage and Land Use 
 

The CHSU campus, including primary educational and administrative buildings and all 
ancillary uses, is envisioned to occupy between 123 and 138 acres within the R-T Park. The 
existing College of Osteopathic Medicine and related facilities that are currently in operation 
occupy approximately 20 acres. Roughly 103 additional acres are now owned by the CHSU 
Representatives, with another 15 acres in various stages of acquisition negotiations, 
bringing the total undeveloped acreage to 118. Undeveloped lands are planned for future 
CHSU phases, affiliated housing, and other essential, ancillary services. Buildout of the 
CHSU campus is organized into three general phases, as follows:   

 

 Phase I includes 45 acres of development around the existing College of Osteopathic 
Medicine, comprised of additional schools and supporting uses.   

 

 Phase 2 includes the development of student and faculty housing, including 20 acres of 
multi-family housing on the west side of Temperance and 50 acres of single family 
housing on the east side of Temperance. The commencement and timing of housing will 
proceed as the build-out of Phase I occurs. 

 

 Phase 3 encompasses a total of approximately 23 acres, including a roughly 16 acre site 
accommodating future schools of medicine, and an ancillary commercial center that 
would occupy up to 7 acres. Future schools of medicine that are currently planned 
include those focused on optometry, dentistry and occupational therapy. All of Phase 3 
is located east of Temperance between Nees and Owens Mountain Parkway. 
 

The operational statement anticipates that development plans will be revised and refined 
over time as the campus builds out. Refinements to the locations of additional colleges within 
the R-T Park may be adjusted and/or changed altogether, and affiliated student and faculty 
housing units may also be modified. Site plans will therefore evolve as future needs present 
themselves and market demand comes into focus. 
 
 

49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Student and Faculty Housing 
 
The affiliated housing areas envisioned as Phase 2 of the master plan are sited on approximately 
70 acres within the R-T Park, roughly one-half mile north and east of CHSU’s existing 
campus. This represents a slight increase from the 65 acre total presented during the 
November 9, 2020 Council discussion. Within this area, 286 apartments, 64 townhouses, 
and 250 single-family dwellings are, at present, on the drawing board. As currently 
contemplated, the student housing element design features 572 parking spaces (198 
garages and 374 stalls), a 4,000 square foot facility serving as a student union/clubhouse 
facility, and various amenities in support of the CHSU’s student population, faculty and 
visitors. 

 
Timing and Demand for Housing 
 
The operational statement describes that the need for student housing has already been 
triggered, though demand is expected to accelerate substantially by 2023. Faculty housing 
is needed now with construction commencing in 2021, if occupancies in 2022 are to become 
a reality. Student housing will be constructed as various colleges are brought on-line.  

 
Campus Design and Connectivity 
 
The operational statement and conceptual master plan identify the importance of 
establishing a “sense of place” for those working, studying, and living in close proximity to 
the campus, as well as facilitating well planned and inviting interior circulation features. As 
each of the future phases comes into focus and is ready for development, care will be taken, 
and high priority given, to ensure one’s ease of physical connectivity and “sense of place” 
while at the CHSU campus. High-quality designs and contemporary appearances will 
continue to be utilized in all phases of CHSU’s planned development. CHSU will continue 
to work with the City to determine specific colors and materials to be evaluated during all 
phases of the master development plan. 

 
Memorandum of Understanding 
 
The purpose of the MOU is to memorialize the mutual understanding of the City and CHSU 
with respect to the development of the campus, including campus-affiliated housing, and to 
serve as a guide in the development of the campus and the processing of necessary land 
use entitlements in the future. The MOU was crafted to incorporate the guidance and 
direction provided by the Council during its November 9, 2020 discussion. The updated 
CHSU operational statement and conceptual master plan for the campus, as described 
above, are attached to and incorporated by reference into the MOU. Key features of the 
agreement are outlined below. 

 

 Students and faculty housing is acknowledged as being integral to the campus; the 
employment, educational, and economic benefits that will be realized when the 
campus is fully developed justifies the potential loss of available land in the R-T Park 
for other employment and economic uses. 

50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 CHSU shall provide a campus housing phasing plan to the City which identifies the 
type and timing of various campus housing needs in relation to the development of the 
various schools and the housing demand they generate. The phasing plan shall be 
submitted with an amended administrative use permit (AUP) application or in 
connection with any applicable campus housing entitlement. 
 

 A restrictive covenant shall be recorded on all campus housing property which provides 
that no parcel or portion of said land may be sold without first offering the parcel or 
land for sale to the CHSU for a period of no less than thirty (30) days. The covenant 
shall run with the land for as long as the campus continues in operation in the R-T 
Park.   
 

 The operational rules for any multi-family campus housing will include provisions for 
targeted marketing to students, faculty and campus personnel; leasing alternatives or 
terms will be made available to students, faculty, and campus personnel that are not 
available to the general public. CHSU representatives evaluated the potential to 
reserve a specific number or percentage of multi-family units for students and/or 
faculty, and determined that a reservation was not practical within their business 
model.  
 

 All campus buildings and improvements, including campus housing, will be developed 
in conformance with applicable City architectural guidelines and development 
standards for the R-T Park.   

 

 Physical connectivity between and among campus buildings and campus housing will 
be provided, and may be in the form of improved walking and biking trails or paths, 
campus signage, and other features of physical connectivity.   
 

 CHSU shall submit an application to the City for amending the AUP to incorporate the 
master plan and campus housing phasing plan, and the City shall process the 
application for the amended AUP in accordance with applicable provisions of the City’s 
Development Code.   

 

 Any proposed changes to the master plan or campus housing phasing plan that 
propose to add land for campus housing or propose a change in land use as shown in 
the operational statement will require City Council approval in the form of an 
amendment to this MOU, approved and signed by both parties. Minor changes to the 
master plan or campus housing phasing plan not addressed in the previous sentence 
may be processed as an amended AUP in accordance with the City’s Development 
Code. 
 

 Any necessary entitlements for the campus development, improvements, and 
buildings, including campus housing (whether multi-family or single family residential), 
will be processed in accordance with the City’s Development Code and applicable 
standards.   

51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 Nothing in the MOU prohibits CHSU from selecting a builder to develop any portion of 
the campus and campus housing, provided that any application for a relevant land use 
entitlement is submitted with CHSU approval and contains a signature of a duly-
authorized CHSU representative.  

 
R-T Park Cleanup 
 
At its January 4, 2021 meeting, the City Council initiated R-T Park amendments to both the 
Development Code and General Plan. These actions are intended to retire existing, non-
conforming zoning within the R-T Park and remove inconsistencies between the General 
Plan and City’s Development Code to streamline future development within the R-T Park. 
The MOU acknowledges that the cleanup action has been initiated, and CHSU will not be 
responsible for initiating any rezoning application. Staff is in the process of identifying 
parcels where non-conforming zoning exists, and public outreach to affected property 
owners will be conducted. Planning Commission review of the cleanup amendments, 
followed by final action by the City Council, is anticipated this spring. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If the City Council approves the MOU and the development of student and faculty housing 
proceeds, the amount of land in the R-T Park area intended for revenue generating 
commercial and office uses would be reduced.  
 
CHSU has been a boost to the City’s economic development efforts and establishing related 
student and/or faculty housing to further the success of the University meets the City’s 
economic development goals. As acknowledged in the MOU, the employment, educational, 
and economic benefits that will be realized when the campus is fully developed may 
reasonably justify the potential loss of available land in the R-T Park for other employment 
and economic uses. 
 
An Economic Impact Analysis for CHSU was prepared by the consulting firm QK, included 
as part of the Operational Statement (Attachment 3). The study shows the creation of more 
than 530 permanent jobs from CHSU operations and student spending, as well as another 
2024 one-time annual jobs in construction and other economic sectors resulting from capital 
investment in facilities and housing projects. As a result, cumulative economic output of more 
than $580 million from CHSU and students spending and more than $350 million from capital 
investment is also injected into the local and regional economy during the seven-year period 
of analysis (2020-2027). 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
At its November 9, 2020 meeting, the City Council provided direction to staff and guidance 
to CHSU and representatives of its Ownership Group regarding the updated vision for the 
CHSU Campus, including campus housing. The applicants developed an updated 
operational statement and worked with staff to incorporate language into an MOU that 
reflects the key elements directed by the City Council. The MOU and operational statement 
are presented for the Council’s consideration.  

52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
CHSU will submit an application to the City for amending AUP 2016-09 to incorporate the 
master plan and campus housing phasing plan, and the City shall process the application 
for the amended AUP in accordance with applicable provisions of the City’s Development 
Code.   

Prepared by: Dave Merchen, City Planner 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS_  

 

53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



ATTACHMENT 1 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 21-____ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF CLOVIS AND CALIFORNIA HEALTH 
SCIENCES UNIVERSITY (CHSU) ADDRESSING THE BUILDOUT OF THE CHSU 

CAMPUS 
 

WHEREAS, the City approved Administrative Use Permit 2016-09 (“AUP”) in June 2016 

allowing for the development of the CHSU campus (“Campus”) on property located within an 

area designated by the General Plan for Mixed Use-Business Campus; and 

  

WHEREAS, the AUP included a conceptual master site plan for the Campus layout which 

included two sites totaling approximately 45 acres for the development of the various 

educational buildings and associated administrative and other buildings in the Campus layout, 

and a third site of proposed student housing on approximately 24.5 acres of the Campus 

located west of Locan Avenue and north of the Owens Mountain Parkway alignment; and 

 

WHEREAS, CHSU has approached the City with a new conceptual master plan for the 

Campus consisting of approximately 138 acres, and which includes additional land, new and 

expanded educational facilities, additional land uses intended to be ancillary to the Campus, 

and phasing not included in the AUP, all of which are intended to serve the Campus and the 

students, faculty and other Campus personnel; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is supportive of the new conceptual master plan and CHSU’s vision 

for the Campus, and recognizes that Campus-affiliated housing to serve students, faculty, and 

other Campus personnel is an integral part of the Campus; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City and CHSU mutually desire to see the Campus develop and be 

successful, and in so doing will provide educational and economic opportunities which will 

benefit the City and its residents, the public at large, CHSU, and the Campus; and    

 

WHEREAS, a memorandum of understanding has been developed to memorialize the 

mutual understanding of the parties with respect to the development of the Campus, including 

the Campus-affiliated housing, and to serve as a guide for the parties in the development of 

the Campus, Campus-affiliated housing, and the processing of necessary land use 

entitlements in the future. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis Council hereby adopts the 

Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Clovis and the California Health Science 

University.  

 

*   *  *  *    * 

54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on February 8, 2021, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  February 8, 2021 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTADNING BETWEEN THE CITY OF CLOVIS AND 

CALIFORNIA HEALTH SCIENCES UNIVERSITY 

 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into effective on February ___, 

2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Clovis, a California Municipal Corporation 

(“City”), and the California Health Sciences University, LLC, a California limited liability company 

(“CHSU”), pursuant to the following recitals which are a substantive part of this MOU: 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. The City approved Administrative Use Permit 2016-09 (“AUP”) in June 2016 allowing for 

the development of the CHSU campus (“Campus”) on property located within a General 

Plan designated area for Mixed Use-Business Campus. 

 

B. The AUP included a conceptual master site plan for the Campus layout which included two 

sites totaling approximately 45 acres for the development of the various educational 

buildings and associated administrative and other buildings in the Campus layout, and a 

third site of proposed student housing on approximately 24.5 acres of the Campus located 

west of Locan Avenue and north of the Owens Mountain Parkway alignment.  

 

C. Since the approval of the AUP, the College of Osteopathic Medicine has been completed in 

addition to the off-site College of Pharmacy and related administrative buildings. 

 

D. Since the approval of the AUP, additional land has been acquired for the Campus, and the 

vision for the Campus has evolved, including the vision for the type and locations of the 

Campus housing and a proposed expansion of the Campus into the City’s planned future 

Research and Technology Business Park (“R-T Park”), a General Plan designated Focus 

Area comprised of approximately 340 acres.     

 

E. CHSU has approached the City with a new conceptual master plan for the Campus 

consisting of approximately 138 acres, and which includes additional land, new and 

expanded educational facilities, additional land uses intended to be ancillary to the Campus, 

and phasing not included in the AUP, all of which are intended to serve the Campus and the 

students, faculty and other Campus personnel.   

 

F. The City is supportive of the new conceptual master plan and CHSU’s vision for the 

Campus, and recognizes that Campus-affiliated housing to serve students, faculty, and other 

Campus personnel is an integral part of the Campus.   

 

G. Amendments to the General Plan and Development Code, together with a rezone of various 

properties within the R-T Park, including some property within the area of the conceptual 

master plan for the Campus, have been initiated by the City.  These actions are intended to 

retire existing, non-conforming zoning within the R-T Park and remove inconsistencies 

between the General Plan and City’s Development Code to streamline future development 

within the R-T Park. 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 
56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

H. The City and CHSU mutually desire to see the Campus develop and be successful, and in so 

doing will provide educational and economic opportunities which will benefit the City and 

its residents, the public at large, CHSU, and the Campus.    

 

I. The purpose of this MOU is to memorialize the mutual understanding of the parties with 

respect to the development of the Campus, including the Campus-affiliated housing, and to 

serve as a guide for the parties in the development of the Campus, Campus-affiliated 

housing, and the processing of necessary land use entitlements in the future. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, City and CHSU agree as follows:   

 

1. Campus Operational Statement and Master Plan.  CHSU’s Operational Statement for the 

Campus, including a Conceptual Master Plan diagram and a CHSU Master Plan Phasing diagram 

(collectively referenced herein as the “Operational Statement”), is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 

incorporated herein by this reference.  The Operational Statement describes the planned Campus 

operations, growth, development plan, Campus and housing needs, phasing, and economic impact, 

among other topics addressed, and the Conceptual Master Plan diagram and CHSU Master Plan 

Phasing diagram depict the planned Campus development including phasing and land use types.   

 

2. Campus-Affiliated Housing.  Housing for students, faculty and Campus personnel is an 

integral part of the Campus.  While neither single family nor multi-family housing is permitted in 

the R-T Park zone, housing ancillary to and affiliated with the Campus is permitted (hereinafter  

“Campus Housing”).  The parties recognize that the development of appropriate and adequate  

Campus Housing to support the Campus and the employment, educational, and economic benefits 

that will be realized when the Campus is fully developed justifies the potential loss of available land 

in the R-T Park for other employment and economic uses.  The parties also recognize and 

acknowledge that CHSU is not in the business of land development, and nothing in this MOU shall 

prohibit CHSU from selecting a builder to develop any portion of the Campus Housing, provided 

that any application for a land use entitlement for the Campus Housing, is submitted with CHSU 

approval and contains a signature of a duly-authorized CHSU representative.  

 

(A) Timing of Campus Housing.  The timing of development of the Campus Housing is 

important so that appropriate and adequate housing inventory is available as the Campus is 

developed.  In order for appropriate and adequate Campus Housing to be available for 

students, faculty, and Campus personnel, CHSU shall provide a Campus Housing phasing 

plan to the City (“Campus Housing Phasing Plan”) which identifies the type and timing of 

various Campus Housing needs with the development of the various schools of the Campus 

and is reasonably supported by the numbers of students, faculty, and Campus personnel.  

The Campus Housing Phasing Plan shall be submitted as part of the application for the 

amended AUP or in connection with any Campus Housing Entitlement(s), as applicable, as 

described in Section 4(A) and 4(B) of this MOU. 

 

(B)  Affiliation of Campus Housing.  In order to establish and maintain adequate 

affiliation with the Campus, all land for Campus Housing as designated in the Conceptual 

Master Plan, or as hereafter amended or added, shall be subject to a restrictive covenant 

(“Covenant”) duly recorded in the Office of the Fresno County Recorder which provides 

that no parcel or portion of land designated for Campus Housing may be sold without first 

offering the parcel or land for sale to the CHSU for a period of no less than thirty (30) days.  

57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

The Covenant shall run with the land and operate as a restrictive covenant on the parcels and 

land for as long as the Campus continues in operation in the R-T Park.  Additionally, the 

operational rules for any multi-family Campus Housing (“MFR Rules”) shall include 

provisions for targeted marketing to students, faculty and Campus personnel as a first 

priority and leasing alternatives or terms available to students, faculty, and Campus 

personnel that are not available to the general public.  The Covenant and MFR Rules shall 

be subject to City review and approval in connection with the applicable land use 

entitlement(s) as provided in Section 4 of this MOU.  

 

3. Architectural Guidelines and Campus Connectivity.  All Campus buildings and 

improvements, including Campus Housing, whether included in the Conceptual Master Plan or 

hereafter amended or added, shall be in conformance with applicable City architectural guidelines 

and development standards for the R-T Park.  In addition to architectural and design connectivity, 

physical connectivity between and among Campus buildings and Campus Housing shall be 

provided, and may be in the form of improved walking and biking trails or paths between Campus 

buildings and Campus Housing, landscape improvements, Campus signage, and other features of 

physical connectivity.  The design and layout of Student Housing, including the required physical 

connectivity features, shall be subject to City review and approval in connection with the applicable 

land use entitlement(s) as provided in Section 4 of this MOU.  

 

4. Land Use Entitlements.  The parties contemplate that the Conceptual Master Plan will 

include, but may not be limited to, the following land use entitlements.  CHSU acknowledges and 

agrees that its dealings with the City in connection with processing any land use entitlements or 

permits for the Campus development, including Campus Housing, shall be at arms-length and 

nothing herein shall be deemed to have committed the discretion of the City, any City officer or 

employee, or the City Council with respect thereto. 

 

(A)   Amended AUP.  CHSU shall submit an application to the City for amending the 

AUP to incorporate the Conceptual Master Plan diagram and CHSU Master Plan Phasing 

diagram, and the City shall process the application for the amended AUP in accordance with 

applicable provisions of the City’s Development Code.  Any proposed changes to the 

Conceptual Master Plan diagram or CHSU Master Plan Phasing diagram that propose to add 

land for Campus Housing or propose a change in land use from as shown in either diagram 

included in Exhibit A attached hereto shall require City Council approval in the form of an 

amendment to this MOU approved and signed by both parties.  Minor changes to the 

Conceptual Master Plan diagram or CHSU Master Plan Phasing diagram not addressed in 

the previous sentence and may be processed as an amended AUP in accordance with the 

City’s Development Code.   

 

(B) Campus Development and Campus Housing Entitlements.  Any necessary 

entitlements for the Campus development, improvements, and buildings, including Campus 

Housing (whether multi-family or single family residential), shall be processed in 

accordance with the City’s Development Code and applicable standards.  Nothing in this 

MOU shall prohibit CHSU from selecting a builder to develop any portion of the Campus 

and Campus Housing, provided that any application for a land use entitlement for the 

Campus development and Campus Housing is submitted with CHSU approval and contains 

a signature of a duly-authorized CHSU representative.  

 

58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

(C) CEQA.  Appropriate environmental review shall be conducted in connection with 

any land use entitlement issued by the City for the Campus development, including Campus 

Housing.  

 

5.   Term of MOU and Termination.  Except upon termination as provided herein, this MOU 

shall be in effect for an indefinite period of time and for as long as the Campus is in operation in the 

R-T Park.  This MOU shall automatically terminate upon: dissolution or termination of the 

existence of CHSU; CHSU insolvency; appointment of a receiver for any asset of CHSU; CHSU’s 

assignment for the benefit of creditors; or the commencement of any proceeding under any 

bankruptcy or insolvency law by or against CHSU. 

 

6. Assignment.  Except with respect to the development, operation, and management of 

Campus Housing in accordance with this MOU, and the preparation, management, and operations 

of the applicable Covenant and MFR Rules for the various Campus Housing, CHSU may not assign 

or sublet any rights or obligations under this MOU or any interest in this MOU without the prior 

written consent of the City.  City will not unreasonably withhold its consent provided any successor 

entity assumes the obligations under this MOU and provides satisfactory evidence to City that it has 

the resources to perform all CSHU obligations under this MOU. 

 

7. Amendment.  This MOU may not be modified, amended, changed, or terminated, unless 

otherwise expressly provided herein, in whole or in part, except by an agreement in writing duly 

authorized and executed by authorized representatives of the City and CHSU. 

 

8. Notice.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that either party 

desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and either served personally or 

sent by prepaid first class mail.  Notice shall be deemed communicated only when received either 

personally by the party to whom notice is to be given or when received by registered mail at the 

address of such party as herein provided.   

CHSU: 

California Health Sciences University 

Attn: Florence Dunn, CEO 

120 N. Clovis Avenue 

Clovis, CA 93612 

 

City: 

City of Clovis 

Attn: City Manager   

1033 Fifth Street 

Clovis, CA 93612 

 

Either party may designate a different address by notifying the other party of the change of address. 

 

 

9. Waiver.  No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy of City on any default 

by CHSU shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver.   City's consent to or 

approval of any act by CHSU requiring City's consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or 

render unnecessary City's consent to or approval of any subsequent act by CHSU.  Any waiver by 

City of any default must be in writing and shall not constitute, operate as or be construed to be a 

continuing waiver of any other default concerning the same or any other provision of this MOU.  

The single or partial exercise by any party shall not preclude any other or future exercise thereof or 

the exercise of any other right.   

 

59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

10. Relationship of Parties; No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This MOU is not intended to and 

shall not be construed as creating a new joint powers authority or other entity, or relationship of 

joint venturers, partners, or employer-employee between the City and CHSU.  The City is not, nor 

shall it become or be deemed to be, a partner or a joint venturer with CHSU by reason of the 

provisions of this MOU, nor shall this MOU be construed to authorize either party to act as the 

agent for the other.  This MOU does not create and shall not be construed to create any rights, 

including without limitation third party beneficiary rights, enforceable by any person, entity, or 

organization not a party to this MOU.  

 

11.  Construction of MOU.  This MOU is the product of negotiation and preparation by and 

among each of the parties hereto and their representatives, and the parties agree that this MOU shall 

not be deemed to have been prepared or drafted by any one party.  Accordingly, the normal rule of 

construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not 

be employed in the interpretation of this MOU.  This MOU shall be construed and interpreted in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

12. Severability.  The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this MOU 

shall not render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

 

13. Entire MOU.  With respect to the subject matter hereof, but not including the AUP which 

shall continue according to its terms and conditions and as may be subsequently amended, this 

MOU, including each of the Exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein, constitutes the entire 

agreement between the City and CHSU pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersede any 

and all previous negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings, agreements, and understandings of 

any nature whatsoever between the City and CHSU with respect to the Campus and Campus 

Housing. Each party has made its own independent investigation of the subject matters of this MOU 

and is not relying upon any representation not specified herein. 

 

14. Voluntary MOU.  Each party represents and warrants to the other party the following: they 

have carefully read this MOU, and in signing this MOU, they do so with full knowledge of any 

right which they may have; they have received independent legal advice from their respective legal 

counsel as to the matters set forth in this MOU, or have knowingly chosen not to consult legal 

counsel as to the matters set forth in this MOU; and, they have freely signed this MOU without any 

reliance upon any agreement, promise, statement, or representation by or on behalf of the other 

party, or their respective agents, employees, or attorneys, except as specifically set forth in this 

MOU, and without duress or coercion, whether economic or otherwise. 

 

15. Authority to Execute.  The signatories to this MOU represent that they have received 

authority from their respective governing body to execute this MOU. 

 

16. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts by the Parties 

such that the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  Facsimile or other electronic 

signatures shall be binding in the same manner as originals.  A copy or an original, with all 

signatures appended together, shall be deemed to be a fully executed original Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOU to be effective on the 

Effective Date provided herein. 

 

60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

California Health Sciences University, LLC,  City of Clovis 

a California limited liability company    

 

By:  _____________________________  By:  ____________________________ 

[Name] ___________________________  Luke Serpa, City Manager  

[Title]____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
J:\wdocs\00607\134\AGT\00847575.DOC 

 

 
  

61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Operational Statement 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

davidm
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T 4

ATTACHMENT 4 106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T 5

ATTACHMENT 5
107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: November 9, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider – Update on California Health Science University (CHSU) and 
request for the City Council to provide policy direction regarding 
establishment of student and/or faculty housing within the area 
surrounding the CHSU Campus. Granville Homes and the Assemi 
Group, applicant. 
 
Staff: Dave Merchen, City Planner 

Recommendation: Provide policy direction regarding the request by 
Granville Homes and the Assemi Group. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Applicant’s Letter – October 5, 2020 
2. Administrative Use Permit AUP2016-09 
3. Approved Conceptual CHSU Master Site Plan 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is seeking Council policy direction related to the addition of student and faculty housing 
within the area planned for the Research and Technology Park (R-T Park) with regard to three 
points: 
 

1. Is the Council comfortable with the updated vision presented by Granville Homes and 
the Assemi Group to utilize approximately 65 acres of R-T Park land for student and 
faculty housing in support of the CHSU?  

 
2. What level of affiliation tying the student and faculty housing to the CHSU Campus is 

reasonable and appropriate, considering that traditional housing projects are not 
otherwise allowed within the area planned for R-T Park? 

 
3. If the Council concurs with the updated vision described above, should staff begin 

working on a zoning “clean-up” action within the R-T Park area to remove existing 
inconsistencies and streamline the process? 

108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

davidm
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 6



 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
In 2016, the Planning and Development Services Director approved an Administrative Use 
Permit (AUP) to allow for the development of CHSU within the City’s planned R-T Park. In 
addition to the various educational buildings shown in the campus layout, CHSU requested 
and received approval to include student housing located west of Locan and north of the 
Owens Mountain Parkway alignment. Following the City’s approval of the CHSU Campus, 
Granville Homes and the Assemi Group (applicant) began working with staff to implement 
the housing component of the 2016 AUP. The applicant’s current vision for CHSU related 
housing anticipates an expanded area near the Campus being utilized to accommodate 
student and faculty housing needs.  

 
Granville Homes and the Assemi Group have requested that an informational presentation 
be made to the City Council to provide an update on the development of the CHSU Campus 
and to request direction regarding their updated vision for CHSU related housing within the 
area surrounding the campus (see Attachment 1). This item will include a brief introduction 
by staff together with a presentation by the applicant. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The following section provides background on the R-T Park, including its intent and a brief 
overview of the development that has occurred since its inception in the late 1990’s. The   
R-T Park was originally established in 1998 in order to attract high quality employment 
opportunities to the Clovis community and greater region. The impetus behind the R-T Park 
centered on promoting economic development and fiscal vitality and to create a stronger 
employment base. The objectives of the R-T Park are to: 
 

 Provide accommodations for research and technology oriented uses, and actively 
promote such uses to broaden employment opportunities and strengthen the City's 
economic and fiscal base. 
 

 Work with property owners in the designated R-T Park area to facilitate consolidation 
of parcels and creation of development sites of sufficient size to accommodate the 
space needs of major research and technology-based firms. 

 

 Employ public investment in infrastructure as a catalyst to attract research and 
technology-based industries that will enhance the City's fiscal base. 

 
At full buildout, the R-T Park will accommodate the development of approximately 340 acres 
in three phases. While research and technology businesses are intended to be the primary 
use-cluster, allowances for hotel and retail uses on approximately 20 acres were also 
included. The retail uses would be secondary uses oriented predominantly along the 
freeway right-of-way and not as a rule in the interior of the Business Park. Based on 
employment characteristics of the businesses occupying the R-T Park thus far, the area 
may generate an estimated 5,400 employees.  
 
 
 

109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



To date, portions of the R-T Park have been developed with its intended uses, including the 
recently completed CHSU, portions of the Portal Sierra complex located at the northwest 
corner of Temperance and Alluvial Avenues, and the commercial area at the southeast 
corner of Temperance Avenue and Owens Mountain Parkway. These referenced locations 
are shown below in Figure 1.   
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
The following section includes discussion on relevant existing entitlements and the 
applicant’s current vision for student and/or faculty housing as part of the greater CHSU 
Campus.  
 
 

FIGURE 1 
R-T Park Development 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
e
m

p
e
ra

n
c
e
 A

v
e

 

Alluvial Ave 

CHSU 

Portal Sierra 

Sunrise 

Pavilion 

Kids Kare 

Fire 
Station 

#5 

N 

110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Existing Entitlement – AUP2016-09 
On June 9, 2016, the City approved AUP2016-09 (Attachment 2) for the CHSU educational 
campus. As part of the approval, a conceptual CHSU master site plan was provided which 
included three (3) phases of development, which are described below in more detail and 
shown in Attachment 3. 
 

 Phase 1 – CHSU Campus (west of Temperance Avenue): According to the conceptual 
master site plan included under AUP2016-09, Phase 1 of the campus includes 
construction of approximately 291,000 square feet of building area consisting of four 
(4) separate buildings for the College of Pharmacy, College of Medicine, 
Administration, Library & Food Service, and College of Allied Health.  

 

 Phase 2 – CHSU Campus (east of Temperance Avenue): According to the conceptual 
master site plan included under AUP2016-09, Phase 2 of the campus includes the 
construction of approximately 247,000 square feet of building area consisting of five 
(5) separate buildings for the College of Dentistry, College of Optometry, Clinic, 
Auditorium and Food Service & Student Center.  

 

 Phase 3 – CHSU Student Housing (east of Temperance Avenue): According to the 
conceptual master site plan included under AUP2016-09, Phase 3 of the campus 
includes the construction of approximately 250 student housing units on approximately 
24.5 acres near the corner of Owens Mountain Parkway and Locan Avenue. 
According the conceptual master site plan, the units appear to be of a multi-family 
design and were anticipated to accommodate up to four (4) students per unit for a 
maximum capacity to house approximately 1,000 students. 

 
At the time of approval of AUP2016-09, the proposed use was classified as “Schools, 
Specialized Education and Training” under the Clovis Municipal Code (CMC). Although 
student (or faculty) housing is not explicitly defined under “Schools, Specialized Education 
and Training,” because of its ancillary use as part of the CHSU campus build out and its 
ultimate intent to serve CHSU students, City staff found that the student housing component 
was appropriate given its direct correlation to the CHSU school. This was a key 
determination, because neither single family nor multi-family development is otherwise 
permitted within the R-T zone or the underlying Mixed Use-Business Campus General Plan 
designation. 

 
Current Vision for CHSU Campus Related Housing  
Since the approval of AUP2016-09, the vision for the type and locations of the CHSU housing 
component (Phase 3 of AUP2016-09) has evolved. The updated concept includes an 
expanded area being utilized for a mix of units in both single family and multi-family formats. 
For illustrative purposes, the applicant provided an updated graphic showing a generalized 
layout of the campus and surrounding area, including the housing component (Attachment 
1). 
 
 

111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



The conceptual master plan previously approved with AUP 2016-09 includes about 24 acres 
of land dedicated to housing, while the updated concept adds approximately 50 additional 
acres. A diagram comparing the previous master plan to the revised proposal is included as 
Figure 2. Detail regarding the number and size of dwelling units is not included. The layout 
is conceptual at this point, and is not intended to function as a site plan proposal.  
 
 

FIGURE 2 
Limits of AUP2016-09 vs. Updated Concept 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

N 

= Approved Limits of AUP2016-09 

= Addition Contemplated by Updated Concept 
AUP2016-09 

= Total Proposed Limits of Student and Faculty Housing  

112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
Housing in the R-T Park and Mixed Use-Business Campus Designation 
While neither single-family nor multi-family development is permitted as a stand-alone use 
in the R-T Park and Mixed-Use Business Campus area, housing which is integral to the 
CHSU Campus can be viewed as a consistent use. This is how the student housing 
identified in the original approval of AUP2016-09 was presented. In evaluating the 
applicant’s updated concept, staff determined that student and faculty housing sites should 
demonstrate a clear association with the CHSU Campus in order to qualify as a permitted 
use within the campus area.  
 
University - Housing Affiliation 
A variety of potential models exist to establish the relationship between an educational 
campus and surrounding student and faculty housing. On one end of the spectrum, the 
housing units can be owned and managed by the university or a university foundation. On 
the opposite end of the spectrum, the units can be privately owned and simply marketed to 
individuals associated with the school who want to own or rent in close proximity. The 
following specific examples were identified by staff as it researched student and faculty 
housing affiliations: 
 

 CSU Monterey Bay: Single Family - CSU sells home, but maintains a ground lease 
in perpetuity, owner rents ground as well. Rental single family homes also available.  
Apartments - Combination of traditional student apartments and apartments 
reserved for rent to CSUMB and employees of certain “educational partners.” 
 

 Westmont (Santa Barbara):  Single Family - School sells home with deed restriction 
that the home be sold to future faculty/staff. Apartments – traditional on-campus 
housing and off-campus complex owned by the university. 

 
 CSU Channel Islands: Single Family - CSU sells home, but maintains a ground 

lease in perpetuity, owner rents ground as well. Apartments – traditional on-campus 
student housing.  

 
 Stanford: Single Family - Stanford sells home, but maintains a ground lease in 

perpetuity, owner rents ground as well. Rental Housing Programs comprised of 
residential rental leases for university-owned faculty residences subject to a ground 
lease (on- & off-campus), and Stanford University Residences (on- & off-campus).  
Apartments – traditional on-campus housing.  Stanford has also secured off-
campus leases at apartment complexes in Palo Alto, Menlo Park, Mountain View, 
and Redwood City to help meet the high demand for housing. These subsidized 
off-campus apartments are offered along with the on-campus options in a housing 
lottery application. 

 
 CSU Fresno: Single Family – Not offered. Apartments: Traditional on-campus 

housing. Palazzo apartments, new construction near Shaw and Freeway 168, is 
market rate, open to anybody.  Marketed to students, on property sold to University 
foundation. 

113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
 UCSF School of Medicine: While in Fresno, medical students from the UCSF 

School of Medicine campus are housed at Riverview Garden Apartments, provided 
by the University. UCSF Students who are rotating in Fresno do not pay housing 
fees. 

 
The written communication from Granville Homes and the Assemi Group, included as 
Attachment 1 to this report, outlines the proposed relationship between the student and 
faculty housing units and the CHSU Campus. The primary characteristic of the proposed 
affiliation is the opportunity for CHSU community members, students, faculty, and staff to 
gain primary access to the housing units. This includes making all rental units and single 
family ownership units available to CHSU community members before becoming available 
to the public. Additionally, five single homes would be permanently available exclusively to 
CHSU community members. 
 
Staff and the applicant seek Council’s direction relative to proceeding with the updated 
concept for student and faculty housing based on the affiliation described above and 
outlined in Attachment 1. Staff’s observation is that the affiliation should be sufficiently clear 
to distinguish between the applicant’s proposal and any other conventional single or multi-
family development that might also request to develop in the planned R-T Park area. If a 
more direct tie is desired by the Council than has been outlined by the applicant (such as 
ground lease, deed restriction, occupancy covenant, etc.), that direction may be given by 
the Council. 
 
Necessary Planning Entitlements 
When the Council is satisfied with the mechanism that will tie student and faculty housing to 
the University, two levels of entitlements are necessary to implement the applicant’s updated 
concept. First, a “clean-up” action should be processed to transition the existing non-
conforming zoning to the R-T designation and remove existing inconsistencies in the way 
the existing General Plan references to the R-T Park. At Council’s direction, this clean-up 
action can be initiated and processed by the City and will address the entire R-T Park area. 
Second, the applicant should submit a request for a new (or amended) administrative use 
permit to replace the outdated master plan with the updated plan. 
 
Alternatively, if the student and faculty housing products are viewed as traditional projects 
that will be open to all buyers and renters in the market, Council may provide direction to 
proceed with routine entitlements that would otherwise be required. In this instance, 
applications would include a general plan amendment, rezone, site plan review, and tract 
map.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As an item for discussion and direction, there is no direct fiscal impact associated with the 
consideration. However, if the Council provides direction to move forward with the proposed 
student and/or faculty housing concept, the amount of land in the R-T Park area intended for 
revenue generating commercial and office uses would be reduced.  
 

114

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



CHSU has been a boost to the City’s economic development efforts and establishing related 
student and/or faculty housing to further the success of the University which meets the City’s 
economic development goals. However, the use of the property for non-university related 
housing projects will negatively impact the ability of the City to attract the jobs needed to 
meet the objectives in the City’s 2014 General Plan. In general, the City does not have 
sizeable properties available for commercial development and the loss of acreage for 
residential projects puts at risk the City’s long-term fiscal needs.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is seeking City Council direction related to the addition of student and faculty housing 
within the area planned for R-T Park, and the extent to which any such housing should be 
tied to the California Health Science University. At this time, no formal recommendation is 
needed.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
If the City Council’s feedback indicates that student and faculty housing within the planned 
R-T Park is acceptable in concept, staff and the applicant will work together to outline the 
procedural requirements.  

 
Prepared by: Dave Merchen, City Planner 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

115

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

October 5, 2020 

 

City of Clovis 

1033 Fifth Street 

Clovis, CA 93612 

 

 

Dave and Renee, 

 

Thank you for taking the time to meet with our team that has been working on this project for nearly 8 

years. As we have discussed, The Assemi Group of Family Companies, would like to be scheduled to 

provide City Council with a CHSU Master Plan Update, as well as request their direction for Administration 

and Staff to work on amending our existing Administrative Use Permit, as we have relied on. 

Our consultants have defined the amended CHSU affiliated use as described below: 

CHSU Affiliated Housing 

Universities have needed to become more creative in accommodating the housing need of undergraduate 

and graduate students and students with families, in addition to post-PhD researchers, faculty, visiting 

scholars and staff members of the University Campus community. In that context, through University 

owned or University affiliated housing, campuses are entering into public/private agreements or working 

with public and private stakeholders to assure that a variety of housing opportunities are available to the 

University Campus community. The University of California system, for example, is engaged in a multi-

year housing initiative to accommodate its growing population. With many differences between the 

campuses, even at a single campus the housing programs can encompass Residential Halls, On-campus 

apartments, Campus Affiliated Properties, and a Family Student Village experience. 

For the proposed development, having concluded that CHSU as an education/school use is appropriate in 

the Research and Technology/Business Park District, it follows that campus affiliated housing for the CHSU 

community, as an integral part of that primary land use, is also allowed. As set for the in the General Plan, 

a focus area assignment “complements a property’s General Plan land use designation and may expand 

permissible uses.” The Research and Technology Business Park focus area should similarly complement 

the existing land use designation and permissible uses in the Mixed Use/Business Campus General Plan 

Land Use Designation. Research and development is consistent with the Mixed Use/Business Campus 

General Plan Land Use Designation and the Industrial use designations. An education/school use is allowed 

in all of the industrial zoning districts, including the Research and Technology /Business Park District.  

CHSU affiliated housing would be housing located in close proximity to CHSU and designed to 

accommodate diverse housing needs of the post-graduate and faculty community unique to CHSU. Given 

116

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

tatianap
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



117

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



118

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
June 9, 2016 
 
Tom McLaughlin 
Proctor Campus Holdings 
1396 W. Herndon Avenue, Suite 101 
Fresno CA 93711 
 

SUBJECT: AUP2016-09; A request to approve an Administrative Use Permit to allow for a 
Health Science Educational Facility to be established within the Research and 
Technology Park located north of Highway 168 at Temperance Avenue.  

 
Dear Applicant: 
 
This letter is to advise you that the Planning Division has completed its comment period, 
review and public hearing for the subject request. 
 
Please be advised that the use has been approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

(Department Representative- Orlando Ramirez, 324-2340) 
 
1. The applicant shall sign and return the “Acknowledgment of Acceptance of 

Conditions- Administrative Use Permit” within thirty (30) days of the date of approval 
of the Administrative Use Permit (AUP), unless a written appeal is requested within 
fifteen (15) days of receipt of this notice, or the Planning Director grants and 
extension in writing. Failure to execute this condition will result in immediate 
termination of this Administrative Use Permit at the end of the 30-day period. 

Conditions must be signed prior to issuance of building permits or start of 

business, whichever occurs first. 

 
2. This Administrative Use Permit is granted for a Health Science Educational Facility 

to be established within the Research and Technology Park located north of 
Highway 168 at Temperance Avenue. 

 
3. This Administrative Use Permit is not transferable to another location.  

 
4. This AUP is approved per attached Exhibit “B.” 

 

         City of Clovis  
Department of Planning and Development Services 
 

       CITY HALL . 1033 FIFTH STREET . CLOVIS, CA  93612 

119

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

tatianap
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



City Manager (559) 324-2060 . Community Services 324-2750 . Finance 324-2101 . Fire 324-2200 
Gen. Services 324-2735 . Planning & Development Services 324-2340 . Police 324-2400 . Public Utilities 324-2600 

 
5. The applicant shall address zoning inconsistencies for the proposed use prior to 

submittal for Site Plan Review. 
 
6. The applicant shall submit for site plan approval for the project in accordance with 

Section 9-3.408, Site Plan Review, of the Clovis Municipal Code. 
 
7. The applicant shall refer to the Central Valley Research and Technology Business 

Park Architectural Design Guidelines for development of the various buildings and 
uses.   

 
8. This conditional use permit is granted based upon the site plan and related 

exhibits labeled as Exhibit "B", which is on file in the Clovis Planning Division.  
Minor variations to the exhibits may be made through the site plan approval 
process.  Major modification to the site plan shall require amendment to this 
administrative use permit approval. 

 
9. Reciprocal access and hold as one agreements or other instruments approved by 

the City Planner shall be recorded for all parcels affected by AUP2016-09.  No 
building permits shall be issued until the recording of said reciprocal access 
agreement.  Such access easements shall be approved by the Director of Public 
Works, City Engineer, and City Planner. 

 
10. The applicant shall work with staff and affected property owners on wall placement 

through the Site Plan Review process to mitigate potential noise concerns. 
 
11. The developer shall enter into a Covenant Agreement regarding a “right to farm.”  

Such agreement shall be disclosed to all future buyers.  
 
12. All landscaping (open space and private yards) shall conform to the City of Clovis 

Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance. 
 
13. All conditions of the Herndon Shepherd Specific Plan, and the Research and 

Technology Zone District, and any other applicable conditions are hereby referred 
to and made a part of this use permit by reference 

 
14. All parking for the uses shall be accommodated on site.   
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Kevin Tsuda, District Representative – 600-3271) 
 
15. The applicant shall refer to the attached Health Department requirements.  If the 

list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements.   
 

 

 

120

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



City Manager (559) 324-2060 . Community Services 324-2750 . Finance 324-2101 . Fire 324-2200 
Gen. Services 324-2735 . Planning & Development Services 324-2340 . Police 324-2400 . Public Utilities 324-2600 

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Michael Maxwell, FMFCD Representative - 456-3292) 
 
16. The applicant shall refer to the attached FMFCD requirements.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements.   

 

FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Steve Bloem, FID Representative - 233-7161 X319) 
 
17. The Applicant shall refer to the attached FID correspondence.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements.   
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

(Michael Navarro, District Representative- (559) 488-7307) 
 
18. The Applicant shall refer to the attached District requirements.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Orlando Ramirez 
Associate Planner 
324-2340 

 

121

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

tatianap
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



123

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



124

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



125

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



ATTACHMENT 7 

City Council Meeting – November 9, 2020 
Item 7 Meeting Minutes 

 

6:09 - CONSIDERED – UPDATE ON CALIFORNIA HEALTH SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
(CHSU) AND REQUEST FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO PROVIDE POLICY 
DIRECTION REGARDING ESTABLISHMENT OF STUDENT AND/OR FACULTY 
HOUSING WITHIN THE AREA SURROUNDING THE CHSU CAMPUS. GRANVILLE 
HOMES AND THE ASSEMI GROUP, APPLICANT. 
 
City Planner Dave Merchen presented an Update on California Health Science 
University (CHSU) and request for the City Council to provide policy direction 
regarding establishment of student and/or faculty housing within the area 
surrounding the CHSU Campus.  Dave Merchen indicated that staff is seeking 
Council policy direction related to the addition of student and faculty housing within 
the area planned for the Research and Technology Park (R-T Park) with regard to 
three points: 
 

1. Is the Council comfortable with the updated vision presented by Granville Homes 
and the Assemi Group to utilize approximately 65 acres of R-T Park land for student 
and faculty housing in support of the CHSU?  
 

2. What level of affiliation tying the student and faculty housing to the CHSU Campus 
is reasonable and appropriate, considering that traditional housing projects are not 
otherwise allowed within the area planned for R-T Park? 
 

3. If the Council concurs with the updated vision described above, should staff begin 
working on a zoning “clean-up” action within the R-T Park area to remove existing 
inconsistencies and streamline the process? 

 
In 2016, the Planning and Development Services Director approved an 
Administrative Use Permit (AUP) to allow for the development of CHSU within the 
City’s planned R-T Park. In addition to the various educational buildings shown in 
the campus layout, CHSU requested and received approval to include student 
housing located west of Locan and north of the Owens Mountain Parkway 
alignment. In 2019 Granville Homes and the Assemi Group began working with staff 
to implement the housing component of the 2016 AUP. The applicant’s current 
vision for CHSU related housing anticipates an expanded area near the Campus 
being utilized to accommodate student and faculty housing needs.  
 
Granville Homes and the Assemi Group have requested that an informational 
presentation be made to the City Council to provide an update on the development 
of the CHSU Campus and to request direction regarding their updated vision for 
CHSU related housing within the area surrounding the campus. 
 
Christine Ligenfelter, Florence Dunn, and Darius Assemi, representing the applicant, 
spoke in support of the expanded request regarding the housing component of the 

126

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

2016 AUP. Discussion by the Council. It was the consensus of City Council to 
provide general direction for staff to continue to work with the applicant to come to 
resolution regarding what the applicant is requesting and how staff can assist on the 
path forward regarding CHSU student and faculty housing in the R-T Park and return 
to council for consideration.  General policy direction from Council was to:  

 
- Craft “guard rails” (ties between housing and CHSU) that will create a better tie 

between housing and CHSU that is something more than 5 permanent housing 
as provided by the applicant in the letter to council.   

- Ensure student and faculty housing is necessary and essential noting that 
market rate single family residential is not permitted in the R-T Park. 

- Address whether student and faculty housing should be phased for demand as 
the campus expands?   

- Address whether student housing should be restricted to CHSU students?  If 
not, should there be a percentage restricted to CHSU students? 

- Work with the applicant to develop some kind of master plan with images to 
show council the campus housing ties to CHSU.  

- Regarding the three policy questions: 
 

1. Is the Council comfortable with the updated vision presented by Granville 
Homes and the Assemi Group to utilize approximately 65 acres of R-T Park 
land for student and faculty housing in support of the CHSU? Consensus of 
Council to direct staff to work with the applicant and further evaluate actual 
need for student and faculty housing and timing of that need. 
 

2. What level of affiliation tying the student and faculty housing to the CHSU 
Campus is reasonable and appropriate, considering that traditional housing 
projects are not otherwise allowed within the area planned for R-T Park? 
Consensus of Council to direct staff to work with the applicant on a more 
realistic tie (affiliation) between student and faculty housing and CHSU 
comparing what was included in the applicant’s letter to Council (5 homes) 
versus what the applicant provided in their oral presentation.  
 

3. If the Council concurs with the updated vision described above, should staff 
begin working on a zoning “clean-up” action within the R-T Park area to remove 
existing inconsistencies and streamline the process? Consensus of Council to 
direct staff to begin work on the “clean-up”.  

 

127

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	ADM - Feb. 1, 2021 Minutes 210208
	ADM - Feb 1, 2021 Minutes

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	ADM - EDC Report 210208
	ADM - EDC QTR2 SR
	ADM - EDC QTR2 ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	ADM - Road Closures 210208
	ADM - 2021 Street Closures SR
	ADM - 2021 Street Closures ATT 1 Res. 21-
	ADM - 2021 Street Closures ATT 2 Matrix
	ADM - 2021 Street Closures ATT 3 Letter to PBIA
	ADM - 2021 Street Closures ATT 4 Muni Code Summary

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.	PDS - Rubberized Pavement Grant  210208
	PDS - Rubberized Pavement Grant SR
	PDS - Rubberized Pavement Grant -ATT 1 Res. 21- ___
	PDS - Rubberized Pavement Grant - ATT 2 Project Locations

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.	PDS - CHSU MOU  210208
	PDS - CHSU MOU - SR
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 1 Res. - ___
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 2 MOU
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 3 Operational Statement
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 4 Conceptual Master Plan
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 5 Master Plan Phasing
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 6 11-9-20 Staff Report Package
	PDS - CHSU MOU - ATT 7 11-9-20 CC Minutes

	Bottom

